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Pictured 1 - (from left to right) Frank Christian, Jon Ford and Tim Farrell won Gold in 170+ Male Surf 
Team Race and Bronze in 170+ Male Taplin at Aussies. Frank won Gold in 65-69 years Male 2km 
Ocean Swim, and Silver in 65-69 years Male Surf Race. Tim won Silver in 50-54 years Male 2km 

Ocean Swim. 

  



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au  Page | 3  

President’s Report 
 

The Season 
What a fabulous season! 
Lockdowns were well and truly behind us so 
we could meet and mingle freely. It made such 
a difference to the season. Delivering 
programs and operations without all the 
onerous restrictions made it much more 
enjoyable. We were able to connect again in a 
more relaxed and social manner. The bar was 
open, and we had some fabulous social events 
over the season, including the Gary Tierney 
Foundation evening, the Nipper evening and 
the fabulous Muso night. 
 
The season kicked off with lifesaving training. 
Brittany Morgenthaler, as Chief Instructor, did 
another great job leading an incredible team of 
volunteers to deliver SRC, Bronze, First Aid 
and ARTC courses as well as Skills 
Maintenance sessions. Britt is truly dedicated 
to her role in training, and we thank her for her 
commitment.  
 
Patrols, once again, ran incredibly smoothly 
over the season with congratulations and 
thanks due to our dynamic duo Club Captain, 
Romy Lipszyc, and Vice Club Captain, Bridget 
Barnes. Many thanks also to all the Patrol 
Captains and their teams in keeping our beach 
safe and presenting such a welcoming and 
settled environment. I have been getting to 
know more of the active patrol members and 
am very impressed with your commitment and 
dedication to our club. Patrol members of all 
ages performed with maturity and 
professionalism across the summer, and it was 
particularly pleasing to see good attendance at 
patrols. Keeping each other and the public 
safe at Point Leo beach is our main priority, 
and we fulfilled our duties with skill and 
commitment. 
 
The Pride Patrol is a day to celebrate diversity 
and inclusion within the Club and broader 
lifesaving community. This year, it was held 
earlier in the season on 21st January which 
resulted in a fabulous turnout and greater 
exposure to the public. Romy Lipszyc, Bridget 

Barnes and Ella Laussen are to be 
congratulated for organising our Pride Patrol in 
support of our LGBTQIA+ community. The 
Pride Patrol assists in fostering a welcoming 
and inclusive culture within our club. Thank 
you to all those patrollers who attended this 
patrol. 
 
The Pride Patrol was followed by a great turn 
out for our annual Pink Patrol on 19th 
February, celebrating the contribution of 
women and girls to lifesaving. This time we 
thank Bridget Barnes for the organisation of 
the patrol celebrations. Another great turn out 
to this patrol and some great merch. Thank 
you to those who supported this patrol. 
 
Swim Classic 
What a spectacular day for our Boxing Day 
event, the Point Leo Swim Classic, although 
the conditions became increasingly more 
challenging as the day progressed. Thanks to 
all our water safety for keeping the competitors 
safe. I saw some amazing efforts by water 
safety on the day. Huge thanks to Chris 
Oldham and his team for managing the event. 
It was Chris’ first year as organiser and with 
some guidance from former organiser Simon 
Merrigan, Chris did an awesome job. Thanks 
to Romy and Bridget also for their organising 
and managing the volunteer t-shirts, which 
were highly coveted. 
 
We also greatly appreciate the Balnarring and 
District Community Bank for continued support 
of the 2.5km Swim Challenge and other 
sponsors including Paton Estate Agents Pty 
Ltd, and Mornington Prime Cuts, who provided 
sausages for our sausage sizzle. 
 
Juniors 
What a wonderful Junior Surf Lifesaving 
Program (JSLP) we had this year. It was 
fabulous to have the return of briefings in front 
of the club and the “Nipper of the Day” was 
welcomed back with great enthusiasm. We all 
appreciate the demanding work and many 
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hours put in by Tarena Murray and the JSLP 
Team including Dean Pullar, Sharyn Clarke 
and all the Junior sub-committee which also 
includes Romy Lipszyc, Tamara Brawn, 
Andrew Welsh and Jon Ford. Thank you, 
Tarena and team. Also special thanks to all 
those who assisted in the very onerous set up 
and pack up, particularly Andrew Welsh, Nick 
Clarke and Chris Oldham. 
 
Mornington Prime Cuts once again supplied 
beef sausages to provide sustenance to water 
safety and deliciousness for hungry Nippers. 
This is a significant fundraiser for the club - a 
heartfelt thank you to Mornington Prime Cuts 
for their ongoing support. 
 
The Junior Sunday Sessions followed the 
intensive JSLP, and this program focused on 
participation, inclusion, and skill development. 
These Sunday sessions ran all the way 
through to the Victorian State Championships 
held in March.  
 
The Junior Surf Sports Program is an 
extension of the JSLP and Sunday sessions; it 
offers Nippers an additional level of training 
and continues to strengthen and grow 
with inclusivity. Thank you to Jon Ford for 
managing this program and to Luke Skehan 
and Chris Watt as Junior coaches. Thank you 
all for providing the opportunity for the Juniors 
to further their skills, build team spirit, respect, 
and camaraderie. 
 
A fabulous Junior carnival was held at Point 
Leo SLSC on 5th February. We turned on a 
great day. Thanks to Andrew Welsh for all his 
organisation. Thanks to Holly Wight with 
support from Kate Stern and team for 
organising the Officials’ lunches and Simon 
Merrigan for organising the BBQ. It was 
fabulous to see such a big carnival go so 
smoothly, with members of the lifesaving 
community from across Victoria benefitting 
from our hospitality. 
 
The Junior State Championships were held at 
Warrnambool from 10th to 12th March and by 
all reports, it was a huge three days of racing. 
The conditions were extremely challenging, 
but our Point Leo Nippers showed immense 

courage and resilience throughout the 
championships. In true Point Leo spirit they 
gave their best and all should be proud of 
representing our club. Huge thanks to Tarena 
Murray as Junior Team Manager. 
The Junior Programs only exist because of the 
amazing contribution of parents and club 
member volunteers. You are all incredible in 
your commitment to your roles in delivering 
such a high-quality Junior Program. 
 
Youth 
The Youth Program, aptly named “Lion’s Den” 
is now in its third year. The Lion’s Den is an 
innovative program to encourage engagement 
and subsequent retention within the Cadet 
members (14/15-year-olds). 
 
The Lion’s Den was once again hugely 
successful and culminated in a well-attended 
Swim Camp in January. Thanks to Fiona 
Romari for running such a fabulous program 
and harnessing the energy and enthusiasm of 
this age group. Our young people were 
remarkable in getting involved and assisting in 
water safety for our Nippers and patrols. 
We also thank and greatly appreciate the 
generosity of BlueScope Westernport in 
support of this Youth program within our club. 
 
Senior and Masters Surf Sports  
The Point Leo Gold event was a fabulous day 
bringing together club members from all areas. 
This event encapsulates the spirit of ‘giving it a 
go’ at any level of ability at Point Leo SLSC. 
Massive thanks again to Jon Ford, Nick Clarke 
and the Surf Sports Team for organising this 
spectacular event. It was so awe-inspiring to 
watch the many Nippers, Seniors and Masters 
giving it their all. And doing it all together. I 
encourage all members to come and be 
involved next year whether as a competitor or 
support crew. 
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Pictured 2 - Julia with Michele Ford at Senior 
States 

The Masters State Championships were held 
again in Lorne over the weekend of 12th and 
13th February. I was privileged to attend and 
see all the awesome performances. There 
were many medals and many laughs. I must 
note that Jon Ford has now won 8 consecutive 
Ironman races in his Age Group. This is a 
phenomenal achievement. Well done, Jon! 
Andrew Gibson also deserves an honourable 
mention for his continuous excellent racing 
and a Gold in the Iron amongst his many 
medals. Well done to all the Masters for 
another overall win. This weekend is always a 
wonderful weekend of social connection and 
competition.  
 
It was an absolute privilege to watch Youth 
and Senior competitors give it their all at the 
Victorian Open State Championships from 
24th to 26th February at Ocean Grove. There 
were some fantastic results that you will no 
doubt hear more about in the Team Manager’s 
report. Some competitors were chasing 
medals and others were there in pursuit of 
their own personal goals. All were participating 
enthusiastically and having fun. 
 
Also at this weekend, we had the Boaties 
compete with some great results. It is 
wonderful to see the Surfboat section develop 
in numbers and skill. There is a strong 
camaraderie amongst the boaties and this 
sport is a wonderful one to watch. 
 
I will leave it to the Team Manager and Head 
Coach to provide information on the Point Leo 
Team experience and results at Aussies in 
Scarborough Western Australia. Suffice to say 
there were some great results and a massive 

congratulation must be given to Masters Frank 
Christian, Jon Ford and Tim Farrell with some 
great individual and team results culminating in 
Gold in the 170 year+ Team Surf Race.  
 
I remain in awe of Point Leo SLSC Surf Sports 
Team (including competitors, coaches, 
officials, parents, supporters). They are always 
so supportive, encouraging and caring for one 
another. Values of respect, teamwork and 
inclusion are strongly embodied by the Point 
Leo SLSC contingent. 
 
Huge thanks to Tim Farrell for taking on the 
role of Team Manager and fulfilling this role so 
effectively. Massive thanks to Ant Williams for 
his dedicated leadership as he continues to 
strengthen and motivate the Boat section. 
Massive thanks also to Jon Ford for the 
immense amount of time and energy that he 
gives to the club and into getting the 
competitors on the beach, trained up and 
inspired.  
 
Disabled Surfing Event 
The Disabled Surfing Association Mornington 
Peninsula held their surfing event on 21st 
January (Pride Patrol Day) and it was a 
spectacular event! It was a glorious day in 
terms of weather and just the right amount of 
wave. It was an incredibly well attended event 
with over 147 participants and many 
volunteers. Huge thanks to those Point Leo 
club members that volunteered on the day, 
particularly Andrew Gibson and Mick 
Treadwell for their ongoing involvement. 
 
Future Project 
Point Leo SLSC held the opening of our latest 
building upgrade works on Saturday 15th 
October 2022. The upgrade included 
converting our under-utilised bunk rooms into 
a multi-purpose room and the addition of a 
new caretakers’ room. These works also 
provided the club with an upgrade to our fire 
safety systems, increased capacity for training, 
a flexible meeting space for members and 
community groups and more inclusive and 
accessible facilities. We welcomed many of 
our club and Life Members as well as 
sponsors and key donors, to this event. 
Thanks to Luke Treadwell for leading the 
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building subcommittee and all the 
subcommittee members who have put in an 
incredible amount of work to this project. Luke 
and his team have done a fabulous job and the 
rooms look great. Also special thanks to Anton 
Middendorp who generously donated all the 
audio-visual equipment. 
 
The focus is now on the next stage of works, 
which includes creating a wheelchair 
accessible ramp from the carpark to our 
changing facilities, separation of vehicles and 
pedestrians for improved safety, increased 
lifesaving equipment storage, improved 
bushfire resilience, and some much-needed 
drainage upgrades. 
 
We continue to collaborate with the Foreshore 
on this project to ensure that we maintain the 
integrity of our beach and surrounds and 
highly value our relationship here. We will 
embark on further fundraising over the 2023-
24 summer season and will keep seeking 
appropriate Federal, State and Local 
Community grants. 
 
Bobbas 
On Sunday, 19th March, there was an 
afternoon “meet and greet” with the Bobbas. 
This was well attended with over 60 club 
members including Bobbas, their wives and 
other club members. The afternoon 
commenced with the spreading of Ian “Serge” 
Stuart’s ashes which many of us watched from 
the Balcony or Dude’s Bar. 
 
Then we had a casual, albeit delicious 
afternoon tea and drinks. Huge thanks to John 
Horwood who instigated the afternoon and 
liaised with and encouraged all the Bobbas to 
attend. As so aptly said on the day, John is the 
“glue” that bonds the Bobbas through 
organising catch ups, keeping Bobbas 
informed and ensuring they remain involved 
and valued. 
 
Many thanks to Romy Lipszyc and Myles Irwin 
for all their organisation in leading this event 
and thanks to Sarah-Jo Mason for her support. 
Thanks to all those who assisted on the day. It 
truly was wonderful to chat with the Bobbas 

and hear all the stories and see all the 
memorabilia.  
 
It is our history, part of the fabric of the club 
and adds so much richness and depth to our 
story. 
 
Honours 
Election as an Honorary Life Member is one of 
the highest awards any club can bestow on a 
member. Life Membership recognises 
distinguished and exceptional contribution to a 
club and in this instance to our incredibly 
unique Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club. 
Congratulations to our two newly appointed life 
members, Khali Gooding and Haydn Tierney. 
These are two outstanding and worthy 
recipients of this very prestigious recognition of 
their commitment over many years to our club.  
 
On the evening of 4th January, the 2023 Gary 
Tierney Foundation (GTF) Fellowship 
induction was held at the Club. GTF 
Fellowships are awarded in recognition of 
contributions to the Point Leo SLSC and to 
encourage further leadership from its 
recipients. This event was open to all and was 
well attended by Life Members, GTF Members 
and past recipients, new GTF recipients and 
their families as well as other committee and 
club members. Four amazing young adults 
were awarded the GTF Fellowship being 
Bridget Barnes, Myles Irwin, Ella Swaney and 
Liam Whitehouse. Well done and well 
deserved all of you, and we look forward to 
seeing you further develop in your roles and 
continue with your valuable contributions to 
our club. 
 
Sponsors 
We acknowledge with gratitude all our 
sponsors including Vantage Fuels and Bowser 
Bean Café, O’Connor Beef, Mornington Prime 
Cuts, BlueScope Westernport, Paton Estate 
Agents Pty Ltd, and C.Fulton Garden & 
Landscape Supplies for their support of our 
Club through the active season. Our 
relationship with the Balnarring and District 
Community Bank Branch of Bendigo Bank 
continues to strengthen. We have developed a 
strong partnership with the Community Bank 
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and value our enduring relationship and look 
forward to further collaboration. 
 
We are sincerely grateful for the contribution of 
all Point Leo SLSC sponsors and encourage 
club members to support these businesses in 
acknowledgement of their support. 
 
Finally 
Thank you to our wonderful committee for all 
your hard work and dedication behind the 
scenes. The committee is comprised of a 
diverse bunch of people who are committed to 
the best interests of Point Leo SLSC. We are 
fortunate to have a blend of experience and 
skill sets and club members who are willing to 
commit their time and energy to our club. 
 
A personal thanks to the Executive Committee 
comprising Kim Williams, John Gallagher, 
Romy Lipszyc and Marc Allioti for the 

additional time dedicated to club matters and 
for supporting me in this role and providing 
much guidance and advice. Thanks especially 
to Kim Williams who devotes so much time 
and energy to club administration and 
continues to work with dedication for the Club. 
There are many important activities to be 
performed and managed across the various 
portfolios of Point Leo SLSC to ensure efficient 
and successful operations. There are positions 
on the Committee and there is an 
accompanying extensive list of club activity 
roles. I urge you to get involved next season; 
there are plenty of opportunities across all 
areas to find something that will interest and 
inspire you. Please contact me or any of the 
Committee members if you feel you would like 
to contribute or be involved in any way. 
Involvement strengthens your connection with 
other club members, is fulfilling and can be 
fun!

Julia O’Shaughnessy 
Club President 

Committee 
 

Position Name 

President Julia 
O’Shaughnessy 

Secretary John Gallagher 
Treasurer/Registrar Kim Williams 
Captain Romy Lipszyc 
Vice-Captain Bridget Barnes 
IRB Captain Chris Oldham 
Team Manager (Senior) Tim Farrell 
JSLP (Nipper) 
Coordinator Dean Pullar 

Gear & Equipment 
Steward Andrew Welsh  

JSLP (Nipper) 
Representative Tarena Murray 

Team Manager (Junior) Tarena Murray  
Head Coach Jon Ford 
Athlete’s Representative Caleb Gray 
Committee Myles Irwin 
Committee  Lachie Robinson 
Committee Iris Cassell 

Position Name 

Chief Instructor Brittany 
Morgenthaler 

Senior Vice President Marc Aliotti 
Vice President Juniors Sharyn Clarke 
Vice President 
Lifesaving Services Ella Laussen 

Vice President Grants Michael 
Treadwell  

Vice President Youth 
Development 

Fiona Romari 

Vice President 
Communications Ella Swaney  

Vice President ‘Bobbas’ 
Liaison Sarah-Jo Mason 

Committee Andrew Barnes 
Vice President 
Membership 
Development 

Amber Skehan 

Vice President 
Fundraising & 
Sponsorship 

Simon Merrigan 

House Administrator Andrew Gibson 
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Club Captain’s Report 
 

How fantastic it has been to see our club and 
community in full swing over the past season! No 
longer at the whim of COVID-19 lockdowns or 
restrictions, we entered the 2022-23 season in 
full force. We were able to see the regular SRC 
and Bronze courses, as well as Nippers and surf 
sports, and were able to enjoy the likes of Muso 
Night and our End of Season Celebrations. I’d 
like to particularly remark on the Boxing Day 
Swim Classic; with huge swells, a high tide and 
many of our members working off Christmas 
lunch, we were truly put to the test. 
Congratulations to Chris Oldham and the whole 
team who spear-headed the Boxing Day Swim 
Classic chaos – a major success story! 
 
Our high standard of patrols and water safety 
carried on throughout the season, with several 
hefty and complicated rescues putting our skills 
further to the test. While we don’t wish 
misfortune on our Point Leo visitors, it is always 
pleasing to see a rescue carried out by our 
extraordinary teams. I’m consistently in awe of 
the commitment and decision making brought to 
the beach by our patrolling leaders – it’s a great 
marker of our club’s health to have some thirteen 
patrol captains, who bring with them a variety of 
motivations, past experiences, and expertise, as 
well as ‘their people’ from the club, creating a 
diversity of patrolling members on the shores of 
Point Leo. It’s exciting to see the roll-out of LSV’s 
new Silver Medallion Patrol Captain’s award, 
which three of our members have already 
attained. I encourage all patrolling members, 
regardless of age, confidence, or role on patrol, 
to undertake this course, which is proving to 
produce great leaders and critical thinkers. 
 
Speaking of awards, we had another huge 
season of training and assessment, headed by 
Brittany Morgenthaler. Joyously, SRCs and 
Bronzies no longer were split into bite-sized 
groups for COVID-19 reasons. I’m always 
inspired to see the consistent collaboration 
between the Lion’s Den and the training sector, 
with the annual First Aid course for this group of 
young members, extending their knowledge, 
skills, and confidence. Training and Skills 

Maintenance bring together many aspects of our 
club, much like patrols providing opportunity for 
members of all facets to work together, as well 
as providing pathways for eager members to 
take. Keep an eye on the horizon for more 
courses coming your way over the winter, a 
perfect opportunity to upskill in Advanced 
Resuscitation or IRB. These qualifications have 
afforded many of us immense opportunity (and 
fun) beyond the lifesaving world, so I encourage 
you all to take every chance you get at our club 
to see where you can go! 
 
Our inter-club collaborations continued from the 
winter IRB course in 2022, with another IRB 
course in January amongst other initiatives. It’s 
great to see the Peninsula clubs working as one, 
especially as each of us have achievements and 
issues from time to time – sharing the load is 
always a relief. Social issues that play an 
important part in our wider community also 
continue to be pushed by Point Leo SLSC and 
neighbouring clubs, creating a safer and 
welcoming space for all beachgoers, no matter 
where they visit.  
 
It was heart-warming to see the Pride Patrol 
reach further clubs this year, with many taking 
the Point Leo SLSC driven initiative to new 
heights! We also had the pleasure of marching in 
the St Kilda Pride Festival this year, as well as 
acquiring our new Pride Board – make sure to 
check it out! Pink Patrol was a great success this 
year too, with the younger patrolling members 
supporting the event and many non-patrolling 
members coming along too to recognise and 
celebrate the girls and women in surf lifesaving.  
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Pictured 3 - (from left to right) Bella Warner, 
Romy Lipszyc and Madison Clark at Pride Patrol 

This year, members of the committee, wider 
club, and community (with representatives from 
the Bendigo Bank and Point Leo foreshore 
committee) participated in a Cultural Awareness 
Tour at Willum Warrain. This step in our journey 
of information-gathering, understanding, 
respecting, and celebrating Indigenous 
Australian culture is a true marker of Point Leo 
SLSC’s commitment to using our platform for the 
benefit of all. I look forward to further walking 
down this path, and I encourage you all to 
engage with local First Nations Australians and 
groups, as well as consider what we could do on 
a personal and a club level to recognise the 
traditional owners of the land properly and 
respectfully.  

 
Pictured 4 - Clubbies visiting Willum Warrain 

It excites me to see a reinvigorated 
environmentalism movement being sparked 
within the club. Having been somewhat 
hampered during the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
efforts of many club members such as Luke and 
Mick Treadwell, Andrew Gibson and Andrew 
Welsh, among many others, have not gone 
unrecognised, and are now being used as a 
springboard for more initiatives and 
improvements. Ella Swaney, our Vice-President 
Communications, participates in LSV’s 
Sustainability Working Group, and presented at 
LSV’s conference on where we’re at and where 
we can go, both state-wide and on a club level. 
Please reach out to me, Ingrid Barnes or Ella 
Swaney, if you’d like to be involved in this space!  
 
As always, the Junior Surf Lifesaving Program 
blew me away with the incredible dedication, 
organising and love for the program that Tarena 
Murray, Dean Pullar, Sharyn Clarke, Andrew 
Welsh, Jon Ford, and many, many others gave. 
Age Managers, Activity Leaders, water safety, 
parents, siblings, the list goes on for everyone 
involved in making this an incredible program for 
our young members. It’s obvious to me that the 
relationships and surf skills afforded to the 
participants extend beyond them as individuals, 
and to everyone involved in the program, making 
it such a special aspect of our club and surf 
lifesaving. This season marked the club’s 
inaugural Starfish Program, led by Jane Starr. 
An incredible initiative that I’m keen to see 
develop, already with so many rewarding 
experiences for all participants and helpers. 
 
The Surf Sports section has again left me in 
awe. The high standard this group hold 
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themselves to, while remaining inclusive and fun, 
is to be commended. Many of our competitive 
athletes volunteer in all sorts of sectors of our 
club too, showing their dedication to our 
community as a whole and providing great 
inspiration for others. Results from the Australian 
Titles support the claim that we are a strong club 
competitively, always with new opportunities on 
the horizon. This year, we saw our boat crews 
compete in Perth too!  

 
Pictured 5 - Romy and IRB Captain, Chris 
Oldham, at the Boxing Day Swim Classic 

Of course, I couldn’t do a fraction of my role as 
Club Captain without the incredible Bridget 

Barnes as the Club’s Vice-Captain. The intense 
dedication and love this woman has for our club, 
community and surf lifesaving as a whole is 
beyond my measurable ability. She’s ever 
present, both physically and virtually and 
throughout almost every sector of the club. 
Thank you, Bridget, for everything that you do! I 
extend this thanks to the Executive, and the 
club’s committee; ever supportive. I’ve enjoyed 
my time with this great group of thinkers and 
can’t wait to see what we’ve got in store next 
season!  
 
Our club is a representation of its members and 
the community at any given time. With an ebb 
and flow of things to do and people to engage 
with, there is always something going on. I 
encourage you all to take every opportunity you 
can to get involved, upskill, share your voice and 
ideas, and make your mark! Point Leo SLSC is 
an incredible space to learn, make mistakes and 
grow – the safe, inclusive environment is just 
waiting for you to try what’s next. 
 

Romy Lipszyc 
Club Captain 

Operations 
 

Vice Club Captain’s Report 
Once again Point Leo’s patrols have operated 
with great success! This was our first season 
since the COVID-19 pandemic where patrol 
attendance was not limited by COVID-19 
restrictions. This meant as a Club we were 
able to have the full force of our patrol teams 
on the beach once again! Romy, the Point Leo 
Club Captain, and I have loved seeing all 
members return to patrols and help keep the 
beach safe.  
 
Our Patrol Captains have once again been 
instrumental in Point Leo’s successful patrol 
season. Each pair of captain and vice-captain 
has demonstrated exceptional leadership and 
enthusiasm. They each created such 
welcoming environments on their patrols and 

have helped strengthen and educate our junior 
patrollers. This season the Patrol Captains 
were also introduced to a new LSV system for 
recording patrol hours. While this new system 
presented a few challenges early in the 
season, the Patrol Captains remained patient 
and willing to learn the ins and outs of the new 
system. Therefore, I would like to take this 
time to extend my thanks to each captain duo: 

• Andrew Gibson and Amy Jones  
• Nick Woods and Chuck Warner  
• Myles Irwin and Harry Atkins  
• Georgia Cassell-Ashton and Hannah 

Scott  
• Bella Warner and Charlotte Lillywhite  
• Liam Whitehouse and India Mair and 

Riley Mair  
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Within this fantastic group of leaders, we had 
three new captains and three new vice-
captains. Amy Jones, Myles Irwin, and Liam 
Whitehouse have all done a superb job in the 
first year of their new roles. Amy has done an 
amazing job joining Andrew Gibson as Vice-
Captain of the Legends patrol. She has always 
been on time with completing her patrol logs 
and helped create a fantastic team 
atmosphere on her patrol by preparing yummy 
lunches for them. Myles has also been an 
incredible first-time patrol captain of the 
competition patrol this season. He has been 
flexible and adaptable with patrol dates and 
was a massive help to Romy and myself when 
organising the patrol roster around the very 
busy competition calendar. Finally, Liam has 
also stepped up from being a vice-captain in 
2021-22 to taking on the full captaincy position 
this year. Liam has shown incredible 
dedication to patrol and has put so much effort 
into mentoring and encouraging younger 
patrollers.  

 
Pictured 6 - The Rescue Helicopter flying past 
Point Leo on Pink Patrol 

Together with these three new captains, we 
also had three new vice-captains. India and 

Riley Mair joined Liam as co-vice-captains to 
round out their patrol’s leadership team. India 
and Riley only completed their Bronze 
Medallion last season; however, they have 
truly excelled in this role. Charlotte Lillywhite 
also joined Bella Warner as a fresh new vice-
captain. Charlotte has had a busy season 
balancing working at the Kiosk and patrolling, 
but she has been instrumental in creating a 
welcoming environment on her patrol and is 
always encouraging younger patrollers to 
come and join in.  
 
While Point Leo has experienced a mainly safe 
patrol season, some patrol teams did deal with 
significant rescues and first aids. All patrol 
members who dealt with first aids this season, 
whether they were small cuts or suspected 
spinal injuries, did so professionally and 
calmly. Notably, Bella Warner’s patrol team 
conducted an impressive rescue of a kite 
surfer off Crunchies. The kite surfer’s 
equipment had broken in the very windy 
conditions, and he was floating in the surf with 
his board awaiting rescue. The IRB Driver for 
the patrol that day, Giselle Northcote, and her 
IRB Crew, Zoe Warner, responded to the 
situation swiftly. Giselle and Zoe launched the 
IRB and navigated both the shore break and 
choppy trip around the point to locate the 
patient before bringing him to shore. All the 
while Giselle was coordinating with Bella to 
have the patrol meet them and the patient on 
the sand at Crunchies. The patient was very 
grateful for Giselle, Zoe, and Bella’s efforts – 
congratulations Giselle, Zoe and Bella on your 
incredible rescue!  
 
This season our patrol teams also continued 
the Pink Patrol and Pride Patrol initiatives. The 
Pink Patrol aims to recognise and celebrate 
the achievements of women in lifesaving. This 
year’s Pink Patrol was focused on encouraging 
younger patrollers to take on leadership roles. 
On the day of Pink Patrol, the patrol was set 
up and organised by new SRC and Bronze 
holders under the watchful eye of some older 
patrollers. Pride Patrol was another initiative 
that aims to establish Point Leo as a 
welcoming environment for members of the 
LGBTQIA+ community. Despite an unlucky 
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wet-weather patrol, the Pride Patrol was once 
again a huge success!  

 
Pictured 7 - Madison Clark sporting her pink 
zinc at Pink Patrol 

Patrolling members also played a massive part 
in the successful running of the Boxing Day 
Swim Classic. The challenging surf conditions 
required all those involved to remain vigilant 
and ready for anything. The new SRC and 
Bronze holders did a fantastic job as the water 
safety for the day, while Andrew Gibson and 
Amy Jones were incredible at managing the 
patrol for the day. Unfortunately, I contracted 
COVID-19 two days before the event, so a 
massive thank you must be given to Georgia 

Cassell-Ashton and Andy Nott who stepped in 
to help with the Safety and Water Safety 
Coordinating roles at short notice.  

 
Pictured 8 - New SRC holders participating in 
water safety at the Boxing Day Swim Classic 

A huge thank-you must also be given to all the 
members who volunteered on the day as water 
safety, in the IRBs or under the patrol tent. 
Finally, congratulations to Chris Oldham for his 
first successful Boxing Day Swim Classic!  
 
All this season’s successes could not have 
happened without our incredible patrol 
members. So, a final thank you must be 
extended to everyone who came down to the 
beach to patrol. Whether it was on a rostered 
patrol, Nippers water safety, Boxing Day or 
first aid help, all patrol efforts are very much 
appreciated by the club. All the hard work of 
the patrollers does not go unrecognised, and I 
can’t wait to see you all back down the beach 
next season!  

Bridget Barnes 
Vice Club Captain

 
First Aid Report 
We had another busy season providing first 
aid on patrol, at carnivals and at major events. 
We had five major first aids on patrol, which 
were all expertly managed by our Patrol and 
Vice-Captains. Thank you to all who assisted, 
and to our Patrol and Vice-Captains for their 
management and oversight.  
 
Once again, we had a large team of first aiders 
and medical professionals who volunteered 
their time at the Boxing Day Swim and the 
Point Leo Nippers Carnival. We had several 

major first aids at Boxing Day and the Point 
Leo Nippers Carnival, which were well 
managed by our team on-duty. Thanks as 
always must go to Dr Kate Stern for 
coordinating the team of doctors and nurses 
who put up their hand to assist on the day, and 
to Andrew Welsh for assisting with the 
organisation of the first aiders.  
 
We are always looking for more members who 
hold a Level 2 first aid certificate. Please don’t 
hesitate to get in touch if you would be 
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interested in undertaking a first aid course or 
assisting with First Aid down at the club.  Ella Swaney 

First Aid Officer

 
IRB Report 
This season has been a very busy season for 
the IRB section. In addition to our usual support 
to the Nippers program, Boxing Day Swim and 
Point Leo Gold, an increase in our number of 
competitors at carnivals has seen a 
corresponding rise in our obligation to provide 
IRB drivers and crew for water safety at 
carnivals. 
 
From a Nippers program support perspective, we 
were very fortunate to have stalwarts like Steve 
Northcote, Simon Merrigan, Jason Romari and 
Nat Clark who were willing to jump in the boat for 
one or both sessions. This year we also had 
great support for many sessions from Bella 
Gluskie, India Mair, Riley Mair and Charlie 
Macpherson-Smith. 
 
The distinguished pairing of Giselle Northcote 
and Zoe Warner also took on several Nipper 
sessions and made themselves available to 
support many of the club activities and carnivals 
throughout the season. Giselle and Zoe also 
conducted a very safe and efficient rescue of a 
windsurfer near The Hump in very challenging 
conditions during one of their patrols early in the 
season. 
 
We had our biggest numbers in quite some time 
for the Boxing Day Swim this year. Our boats 
provided excellent coverage and were manned 
by Steve Northcote, Andrew O’Hara, Jason 
Romari, Nat Clarke, India Mair, Riley Mair, 
Giselle Northcote, Zoe Warner, Mick Treadwell, 
Luke Treadwell, Nathan Miller, Bella Gluskie, 
Ned Swaney, Chloe Talbot, Chuck Warner, Sam 
Warner, Bryce Appleton, Nick Richardson and 
Zali Cargill and Britt Morgenthaler. I am also very 

grateful to our Club Captain, Romy, and “patrol 
boss”, Bridget for identifying boat drivers and 
crew for the event and water safety support. 
Andy Nott and Myles Irwin provided world class 
safety and emergency management and water 
safety coordination at the swim event. 
 
Several of the above-named people also turned 
out at short notice to ensure the Point Leo Gold 
had adequate water safety in place. Not unlike 
Boxing Day, relatively benign conditions became 
quite demanding as winds veered thanks to 
unexpected storm cells. Thank you to all 
involved and to Myles again for coordinating 
during the event. 

 
Pictured 9 - IRB drivers and crew preparing the 
boats for the Boxing Day Swim Classic 

Carnival support was very challenging this year, 
with some of our regulars from previous seasons 
not being available due to work or other 
commitments. Fortunately, Steve Northcote, 
Simon Merrigan, (new crew this year) Cassie 
Merrigan, Bella Gluskie, Myles Irwin, Nick Ford, 
Kate Brooks, Mick Treadwell, Andrew Gibson, 
Nat Clarke and Andrew O’Hara all put their hand 
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up. I would particularly like to thank Andrew 
Gibson and Andrew O’Hara who came a long 
way, many years after their kids have left the 
sport, to man an IRB at the Anglesea Junior 
Carnival to make sure our kids could get a final 
hit out in challenging surf before the State 
Championships at Warrnambool. 
 
Patrol support has also been difficult this year. 
Thank you to those IRB drivers and crew that 
answered the call from Bridget and Romy when 
patrol numbers were looking bleak. 
 
Hopefully our support woes will improve over the 
next couple of seasons. Nat Clarke has become 
an IRB trainer this season and has already run a 
couple of courses, in conjunction with Dromana 
LSC. These courses have topped up some our 
crew numbers and it is great to have Cassie 
Merrigan, Sonny Woods and Charlotte Ashby on 
board. We are currently working together with 
Nat and Britt to put together an off-season IRB 

course. I encourage all Bronze Medallion holders 
to consider getting their IRB qualifications. 
 
Before I finish, I’d especially like to thank the 
indefatigable team of Andrew Welsh, Andrew 
Gibson and Nick Clarke for their time and 
support in the gear shed. I would particularly like 
to thank Nick for building our outboard motor 
lifter, which has seen a lot of use this season 
with our aging fleet of motors needing some 
higher rotation than in previous years. 
 
Finally, I’d like to thank the great Chuck Warner 
and the inimitable Nick Woods, both former IRB 
captains who were never far away if I needed 
some guidance, advice, help or a laugh. 
 
Apologies if I have missed anyone in my words 
of thanks above, your help in making this season 
great was very much appreciated. I look forward 
to seeing everyone next season. 

Chris Oldham

IRB Captain 

House Report
Thanks Jason Romari 
The Romari family took on the role of Summer Caretakers. I sincerely thank Jason for all the work he 
did on the Clubhouse. Jason is a Handyman and an Energiser Bunny. In a few weeks he made many 
significant improvements in the Clubhouse: 

• Replaced rusted clothes-lines; 
• Fixed Wombat Alley lights; 
• Renovated the ‘old’ Caretakers into the new Uniform Shop; 
• Created a Swim Classic Store to keep all the anchors, buoys and gear safe and segregated; 

and 
• Converted the ‘old’ Uniform Shop into the Admin Office. 

 
Clothing Shop 
The Clothing Shop was relocated yet again, but the new location is by far the best. The relocation was 
conceived by Kim Williams and the bulk of the work was done by Jason Romari, ably assisted by Mel 
McPherson and Sandra Williams. This is a much better location. Shop sales don’t hamper training in 
the main room and the outside door access has given the option of sales under a marquee in sunny 
weather. 
 
Kitchen 
Small improvements were made in the kitchen. Jason swapped the chest freezer from the First Aid 
room with the upright from the kitchen, creating more kitchen space and better use of freezer storage. 
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Clubhouse Rubbish (The never-ending saga) 
We had a significant win this season. We terminated our highly unsatisfactory Cleanaway contract 
and made alternative arrangements through the Foreshore Committee. This gave us a much more 
effective service and reduced the cost by $2000. 
 
Our perennial problem remains; we can’t get members to segregate landfill waste from recyclables 
when they put rubbish in a bin. I am thrilled to advise that Ingrid Barnes, recently graduated in 
Sustainability, has taken on the role of Sustainability Officer and will focus on improving waste 
segregation at the Club. 
 
Boardwalk  
In conjunction with Disabled Surfing, repair and maintenance was done on the Boardwalk. Several 
rotted timbers were replaced and a new pile put in. 
 
East side Path 
Sand was barrowed in to cover the gravel track to make transit easier for Nippers’ tender feet. Thanks 
go to Louise Tierney who has donated paving slabs and to Disabled Surfing, who have agreed to lay 
them over winter. 
 
Mules 
We are really fortunate to have two All-Terrain Vehicles (ATV). Our two Kawasaki Mules  
are the workhorses of patrol and competition. We sold our five-year-old machine to the Foreshore 
Committee (they love it) and now have two very new ATVs. Rust is their enemy and rust thrives on 
salt. Thanks to Chris Watt of Two Bay Motors, Tyabb, many rust-prone parts have been replaced with 
stainless steel and the underbodies sprayed with a rust preventive coating. We hope to get longer 
service and better re-sale through these initiatives. 
 
Fire Alarms 
We have persistent problems with the alarms going off. Most are for ‘low backup battery’ in a detector. 
As with all alarms, it is vital to check for an actual problem before cancelling the audible alarm. 
Jobs completed this year include: 
Rebuild beach track New padbolt courtyard Repair roof leak 
Put mulch on beach track Replace broken toilet cistern Winterise HWSs 
Replace rusted clotheslines Repair handle passage fire exit Donate surplus mattresses 
Lay sand on East-side track Repair wheelchair rack Lube jockeys 
Modify Muso stage Wombat Alley lighting Clear drains Nth side 
Replace airhose reel Shelves First Aid Room Replace electrical retract 

reel 
Make safe fire hose cabinet Relocate lockers Re-hang beach wheelchair 
New bolt courtyard gate Honour Boards secured Procure pavers 
Replace batteries fire alarms Replace corflute on hurdles Remove Courtyard sand 
Create new Uniform shop Fire blanket fuel cupboard Swim Classic Gear store 
Create Office Install GTF honour board IRB Stools - S. Northcote 
Repair beach tents Lube hitches Mount TV in MP Room 
Rust proof Mules x 2 

  

Andrew Gibson 
House Administrator 
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Education 
 

Chief Instructor’s Report 
It is with great pleasure that I present the 
Annual Report for the 2022-23 season. As 
Chief Instructor, I am delighted to report the 
successes of our training program this year. 
Our trainers and participants have shown 
exceptional dedication and hard work 
throughout the season. 
 
Adult Bronze 
We are pleased to announce that 13 
participants completed their Bronze Medallion 
this year. Our trainers provided outstanding 
training, which enabled participants to gain 
valuable lifesaving skills. 
 
SRC 
Our Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC) course was 
held on 10th – 11th and 17th December, and 
we are proud to report that 48 participants 
achieved their SRC award. This 
accomplishment is a testament to the tireless 
efforts of our trainers and assessors. 
 
Bronze Medallion 
We had 47 participants complete their Bronze 
Medallion course from Sunday 18th December 
until Friday 23rd December. Our instructors 
provided comprehensive training and support, 
leading to the successful completion of the 
course. 

 
Pictured 10 - The rescue helicopter visiting our 
bronze trainees 

Youth First Aid 
On Monday 2nd January, 14 participants 
completed their First Aid award. The course 
was a great success, and participants gained 
valuable knowledge on first aid and lifesaving 
skills. 

 
Pictured 11 – Bronze trainees doing beach 
skills 

Advance Resuscitation Techniques 

(ART) and First Aid 
On Saturday 7th January, members 
participated in an ART and First Aid course, 
which was a great success, and we received 
positive feedback from all participants. 
 
Inflatable Rescue Boat (IRB) course 
We partnered with Gunnamatta SLSC to 
deliver an IRB course from Tuesday 3rd 
January until Saturday 7th January. Three 
fantastic members completed their IRB Crew 
award, and we look forward to more 
collaboration with Gunnamatta SLSC in the 
future. 
 
Skills Maintenance 
We provided four ongoing training and skills 
maintenance sessions for our members 
throughout the season, and we commend all 
members who updated their awards. 
 
In conclusion, I would like to express my 
gratitude to our trainers for their exceptional 
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dedication and hard work in delivering high-
quality training to our members. Our 
participants' achievements demonstrate their 
commitment to the club, and I am proud of 

their accomplishments. We look forward to 
another successful season and continuing to 
provide excellent training to our members. 

 
 

Brittany Morgenthaler 
Chief Instructor

Surf Sports 

 

Senior Team Manager Report  
It was another season that was threatened to be 
derailed, not by COVID-19, but by the Victorian 
winter! Fortunately, LSV were able to navigate 
the cold waters and complete a season with only 
a few big fish interruptions. 
 
A few false starts saw the Winter Surf Series 
carnivals cancelled due to lack of competitors 
crazy enough to enter. This and the lack of 
COVID-19 left us with a normal season to look 
forward to: the State Endurance Championships, 
followed by three LSV-Led carnivals with three 
club-led carnivals in the mix, two of which were 
sponsored Summer of Surf competitions. We 
also had a growing group of athletes competing 
at the three Beach carnivals at the Melbourne 
clubs during spring. 
 
The winter months were not lost altogether as 
we had a very successful Pool Lifesaving 
season. Three of our athletes, Oscar Skehan, 
Milla Skehan and Milla Clark all competed at the 
State Championships with great success and 
subsequently all three were selected to 
represent Victoria at the Royal Life Saving 
Australian Pool Lifesaving Championships. 
Oscar won in the U16 25m Manikin Carry Relay, 
Milla Skehan came third in the Line Throw and 
Milla Clark won the 100m Manikin Carry and 
came second in the 50m Manikin Carry. 

 
Pictured 12 - (from left to right) Milla Skehan, 
Oscar Skehan and Milla Clark at the Royal Life 
Saving Australian Pool Lifesaving 
Championships 

We came sixth overall at the State Endurance 
Championships, where athletes compete to see 
how much their hard work over winter has paid 
off. Some standout results include; Oscar 
Skehan winning both the U14 4km Board Race 
and the U14 2km Swim Race (a great start to the 
season and sign of great things to come at the 
end of the season); Miranda Aumont winning the 
U15 4km Run and Charlie Farrell winning the 
U15 4km Board Race. 
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Pictured 13 - The March Past team warming up 
at Senior States. Photo by Elizabeth Clancy 

This season we sent an amazing team of almost 
50 athletes to Ocean Grove for a very successful 
Senior State Championships. Isabella Austin 
won the Open Women Board Race and was 
second in the Open Women Ski Race. Notably 
Bella was ranked first overall in Open Women 
Water. Harry Atkins came third in the Open Men 
Ironman. Harry was ranked second overall Open 
Men Water. Charlie Farrell won the U15 Ironman 
and was third in the U15 Board Race and the 
U15 Surf Race. Charlie was ranked Number 2 
overall U15 Men Water. Some more great medal 
winning results are detailed later in this report. 
 
Overall Point Leo came eleventh, which may not 
be our best result, but on the flipside, it may 
mean we can form composite teams next year. 

 
Pictured 14 - Bella Austin Competing at Senior 
States. Photo by Elizabeth Clancy 

After years of anticipation, Aussies was finally on 
in Perth. What a glorious beach. The Open team 
enjoyed the sun and the sand and raced hard in 
conditions like Point Leo. Myles Irwin made it 
through to the Quarter Finals in the Open Men 
Surf Ski, one of the hardest fought events of the 
carnival. It was great to see that Point Leo could 

field an Open Male Taplin team of six, with Myles 
joining his teammates on the board leg, Nick 
Ford and Matt Graves on Ski, Caleb Gray and 
Patrick Hough swimming and Rhys Cole also on 
the board. Bella Ford and Kate Brooks made it 
through to the Semi Final for the Open Women 
Board Rescue. In the Youth, Oscar Skehan 
finished off the season the way he started, in 
blistering form. He warmed up with fifth in the 
heat, consolidated with a fifth in the Quarter 
Final, got serious with second in the Semi Final 
and finished up tenth in the U14 Men Board 
Race Final at the Australian Championships. 
Congratulations Oz, tenth best in Australia. 
 
Both Charlie Farrell and Oscar Skehan were 
selected to compete for Victoria at the Interstate 
Championships in Maroubra, Sydney in January. 
Charlie helped to get third in the Mixed Board 
Relay, came fourth in the Youth Ironman and 
fifth in the Youth Men Board Race. Charlie and 
Oscar teamed up for third in the Cameron. Well 
done boys and good luck next year. 
 
I’d like to pay thanks to every single helper who 
put up their hand this year and made my life 
easier. Being a larger club means we have a 
large quota of officials, IRB drivers, crew, water-
safety and set up/pack up crews. A handful of 
parents went above and beyond to ensure our 
competitors could put their foot on the line. 
Thank you Kylie Clark, Nick Clarke, Chris 
Oldham and the rest of you. You know who you 
are! Thank you to Vantage Fuels for the bus and 
fuel subsidy, which helped to get our competitors 
and their craft up to Sydney for the 
Manly/Freshwater Summer of Surf Carnivals. 
This enabled us to watch three bull sharks 
devour a poor dolphin, and ultimately the 
carnival. Our Aussies competition team are also 
very appreciative of the assistance from The 
Gary Tierney Foundation.  
 
Finally, a great big thank you to Kim Williams 
and Kim Laity for being stand-out performers, 
making carnival entry payments and processing 
easy for me. Thanks to Jon Ford for his 
continued commitment to the club and 
personally, for providing me with a Surf Teams 
medal chance at Aussies. 

Tim Farrell 
Team Manager (Senior)
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Head Coach’s Report
It was amazing in 2022-23 to finally have a 
season free from COVID-19 restrictions. Thanks 
to Junior and Senior Team Managers (Tarena 
Murray and Tim Farrell) for their outstanding 
coordination of the carnival season enabling the 
fantastic results described in their annual 
reports.  
 
Our season for some commenced in winter of 
2022 where ski paddlers worked on technique, 
most members spent plenty of time in the surf 
and enthusiastic members put some serious time 
into the pool. As of October 2022, the Junior and 
Senior Surf Sports Program commenced with 
gusto with daily sessions catering for Nippers of 
all ages, Youth (U14-15), Seniors (U17-Open) 
and Masters. All disciplines were catered for 
including ski, board, iron and a distance run 
session. Swim and gym training was conducted 
independently by members with Flyers being a 
popular choice for squad swimming. We 
continue to look for coaches to conduct beach 
sprint and flags sessions which was a gap in our 
program. 
 
It was pleasing to see the further development in 
confidence and skills of last year’s Youth 
competitors with most of them joining into the 
Senior board and iron squads (ably coached by 
Bella Austin, Caleb Gray and Nick Clarke). The 
Junior Surf Sports Program sessions (coached 
by Chris Watt) on developing capabilities were 
also very well attended and over time members 
of this group progressed to the U11-13 squad 
(coached by Luke Skehan). Fantastic to see 
Justin Phillips take the initiative in running 
board/iron sessions for competitors living in 
Melbourne and we hope to expand this offering 
next season. Our ski paddlers in town also 
trained in the Mercantile Kayak Club squad and 
swimmers at the Melbourne Grammar squad. 
Darius Alekna also coached the endurance 
running program with good numbers attending. A 
final shout out to the Masters squad, many of 
whom trained with Seniors, with others 
participating in the sessions commencing in 
January and running three times a week until the 
State Titles. It was amazing to see the 
development in this group which led to Point Leo 

comfortably winning the Masters State 
Championships for the third year in a row. The 
exploits of our Masters team at Aussies are 
described below. Many of these Masters are 
coming back to share their learned skills by 
coaching our younger members. 
 
We have already completed a survey of surf 
sports participants and had our season review 
meeting. Our strategic plan linking with the club’s 
overall strategy is in the final stages of 
development. Some of the initiatives being 
discussed include modifying the existing 
programs with: 
• A mentoring program for competitors 
and a simple buddy system to assist with goal 
setting, training feedback and carnival support 
being developed; 
• Addition of new coaches from the 
Masters ranks to support the existing coaching 
structure; 
• A Sunday and Saturday session to 
support competitors with various commitments 
on the weekend;  
• A stronger focus on endurance in late 
winter/early spring with the Endurance carnival 
as a key event; 
• A Cup Day craft camp run locally to 
follow up on the Sunshine Coast board camp; 
• Iron sessions to start after Cup Day with 
earlier season sessions working in the Martha 
Cove canals; 
• With Aussies confirmed in surf for the 
next 10 years a strong focus on surf skills 
development (particularly Saturday session); 
• Masters sessions on the weekend to 
support competitors (particularly females) 
attending Aussies for the first time; 
• Development ski for the group of youth 
coming through U14-17 to develop skills in 
technique and surf; and 
• Offering flat water kayak opportunities 
for those wanting to compete at state, national 
and potentially international level. 
 
Thanks to all the people who helped to make this 
season a great success particularly water safety, 
IRB, officials and trailer drivers. As our Surf 
Sports program continues to grow we will need 
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more helpers and there will be opportunities for 
officials and IRB training over the off season. 
Also, many thanks to all the club representatives 
from the committee who have supported the Surf 
Sports program. Thanks to the coaches of the 
Junior and Senior Surf Sports Program (Chris 
Watt, Luke Skehan, Nick Clarke, Caleb Gray and 
Bella Austin) who put in countless hours. If you 
want to support your children in surf sports 
there’s nothing better than getting your Bronze 
Medallion, joining the Masters training program 
and competition team and helping out with 
coaching and water safety; good for fitness, fun 
and role modelling! 

 
Finally, a massive thanks to Vantage Fuels (and 
Haydn Tierney) for supporting surf sports with 
the bus and fuel subsidy, particularly the Manly-
Freshwater carnival! 
 
I am looking forward to a bigger and even better 
2023-24 in the Junior and Senior Surf Sports 
Programs. 

Jon Ford 
Head Coach

 

Surf Boat Report
A very pleasing 2022-23 season with some 
continued growth within the section. The boat 
section fielded four Crews throughout the 
season as well as many social sessions over 
the Christmas period to include club members 
of all rowing abilities. The outstanding ’come 
and try’ participation involved the top age 
Nippers and their Age Managers. These two 
sections (Boys & Girls) got to experience the 
surfboat sensation over a few sessions and 
the smiles on the faces were fantastic. (A big 
thanks to those boaties who assisted in 
‘blooding’ our next batch of boaties - 
something we will roll out again next Nipper 
season). 

 
Pictured 15 - The Point Leo Pandoras at 
States. Photo by Elizabeth Clancy 

 
As outlined above, our four Crews included. 
 
• U23 Men – Point Leo Powderkegs 
• U23 Women – Point Leo Plovers 
• Masters Men - Point Leo Platos 
• Masters Women – Point Leo Pandoras 

 
Highlights of the competition year involved the 
U23 Women Plovers crew making the top 
twelve (second Semi-final) at the Australian 
Titles in Perth. In some tricky shore-break 
conditions the team, swept by Brett O’Loughlin 
was outstanding. It was a great effort by all, 
and the Club is very proud of your 
achievements. 
 
The State Titles at Ocean Grove were 
attended by our two main crews. The results 
were again above expectation, due mainly to 
the hard work the crews put in behind the 
scenes during the year. 
 
• Plovers U23 Women made the final, 
finishing fourth. 
• Powderkegs, as Reserve Grade Open 
Men, made the semi-final at their first 
appearance at the State Titles assisted by Rob 
Wells from the Platos. 

 
Pictured 16 - The Point Leo Platos at States. 
Photo by Elizabeth Clancy 
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The Masters crews again performed 
exceptionally well at the State Masters Surf 
Boats, although separate from the overall 
Masters carnival due to scheduling, our two 
crews outperformed a number of highly 
fancied crews with the Platos claiming Gold in 
the 200+ (back to back) and the Pandoras 
winning Silver in the 180+. 
 
Massive thanks by all the rowers to Brett for 
tirelessly getting crews on the water, and a 
sensational sweeping performance throughout 
the season. Our rowers and boat executive 
thank Ant Davis (aka Davo) for his 
commitment to our teams, sweeping as 
needed and filling in when required.  
 
With sadness in early February this year we 
did lose one of the great Boaties – Peter 
‘Grumbles’ Ford. In great boatie tradition we 
got together with his family and celebrated his 
life. Gone but never forgotten.  
 
As we round out the 2022-23 season some 
special mentions to our sponsors: GANT, 
Balnarring and District Community Bank 
Branch of Bendigo Bank, Shoreham Surf, and 
the Bobbas for your ongoing support. Julia 
O’Shaughnessy and Tamara Brawn for your 
leadership and Kim Williams and Tim Farrell 
for administrative support that has enabled so 
many people to become involved in the boat 
section over the past season. We cannot 
forget the behind-the-scenes Gear Steward, 

Andrew ‘Welshy’ Welsh. Brett and I appreciate 
the Gear shed assistance. Thank you all. 
 
We expect some further expansion of the Boat 
section for season 2023-24. There are exciting 
times ahead with already two new crews 
underway for next season (Senior Men and 
Senior Ladies) along with expansion of our 
current crews. 

 
Pictured 17 - The Point Leo Plovers at States. 
Photo by Elizabeth Clancy  

To all boaties, both current and those who 
want to get involved, stay in touch with the 
Mine articles and the Boaties Winter sessions 
via WhatsApp. Text me if you want to be 
involved over the next couple of months and 
we look forward to an even bigger season next 
year. 
 
Thank you. 
 

Ant Williams 
Point Leo Surf Boats 

Masters Report 
Point Leo won the Victorian Masters 
Championships in 2021 and again in 2022. In 
2023 we were chasing the legendary ‘Three-
peat’. Training and recruitment started many 
months before and an enthusiastic team led by 
Masters coach Jon Ford enjoyed a 
comprehensive training program culminating in 
44 Leo ‘mature athletes’ fronting up at Lorne. 
Suffice to say, the Three-peat is complete and 
focus now shifts to a Leo Masters dynasty. 
 
Lorne water conditions on day one for the Surf 
events were challenging but manageable, and 
our orange caps were prominent through 

individual and team events. Andrew Gibson, Jon 
Ford, Frank Christian, David Russell, Haydn 
Tierney, Michele Ford, Virginia Porter and Jane 
Starr were dominant in their age-groups, 
anchoring a Leo team that collected multiple 
medals to finish the day with 348 competition 
points, 141 points ahead of the second placed 
club. Leo Boaties won Gold in Men and Silver in 
Women, adding to our overall lead. This set up 
an easy run home for our Beach team on day 
two. 
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Pictured 18 - David Russell and Darius Alekna 

Day two dawned cold and miserable for the 
Beach events. Marc Aliotti (4 Gold), Amy Jones, 
Nikki Alekna and Jane Starr were prominent in 
the orange caps. Heartbreak of the day was 
Simon Merrigan who drove down in the foggy 
small hours to help his team, only to hobble off 
with a torn hamstring after his first 50 metres. 
The Beach team was third with another 125 
points, giving Leo a dominant win in the overall 
points tally. 

 
Pictured 19 - Marc Aliotti competing in flags 

Winning isn’t everything. Our Masters team 
reaps many benefits in friendship, personal 
satisfaction, personal fitness and showing a 
great example to our own kids who are starting 
their sporting endeavours. Point Leo SLSC 
encourages all Nipper parents and members 
over 30 to come on board. Put your name down 
for your Bronze Medallion and start improving 
your fitness. You’ll have a ball.   

Andrew Gibson 

Masters Competition Coordinator 

Surf Sports Awards
• Official of the Year 2023 – Kylie Clark for 
officiating in both Junior and Senior carnivals 
and being the Junior Carnival referee statewide; 
• Male Senior Athlete of the Year 2023 – 
Myles Irwin for making the quarter finals at 
Aussies ski and coming second in the ski relay at 
States. A fantastic consistent year of training and 
racing; 
• Female Senior Athlete of the Year 2023 
- Bella Austin for again dominating States in 
individual and team events; 
• Male Junior Athlete of the Year 2023 – 
Charlie Farrell for a solid Aussies performance in 
teams and individual and an amazing States 
resulting in second place in Men’s Water 
rankings for U15. Charlie also finished ranked 
fourth in board at the interstate Summer of Surf 
Carnivals; 

• Female Junior Athlete of the Year 2023 
– Miranda Aumont for coming first in U15 2km 
run and first in U15 1km teams at States; 
• Team of the Year 2023 – Frank 
Christian, Tim Farrell and Jon Ford for winning 
the 170+ Team Surf Race and third in 170+ 
Taplin at Aussies. An incredible result; 
• The John Marshall Swim Competitor of 
the Year 2023 – Tim Farrell for coming second in 
the 50-54 years 2km swim, fourth in the 50-54 
years Surf Race and sixth in the 50-54 years iron 
in addition to the team results at Aussies. A 
breakout year;   
• Masters Award 2023 – Frank Christian 
for again dominating State Masters competition 
and winning gold in 65-69 2km swim (for the first 
time in his long competitive career) and second 
in the 65-69 surf race at Aussies; 
• Board and Ski Competitor of the Year 
2023 – Oscar Skehan for coming tenth in the 
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board final at Aussies and a strong season of 
carnival results over the year; and 
• Beach Competitor of the Year 2023 – 
Abi Morgan for her State results of second in 

U17 Beach Sprint and a strong season racing at 
most State carnivals 

Members & Club Life 

 

Junior Surf Life Saving Program (JSLP) 
The JSLP team consisted of Tarena Murray, 
Dean Pullar and Sharyn Clark with support from 
the junior subcommittee, which was new this 
year. The team worked hard, with a lot of 
collaboration behind the scenes in planning this 
year’s JSLP. Without the restrictions of COVID-
19 we were able to plan a program which 
incorporated components from the last few years 
that worked well, whilst also trying new ideas for 
the structure of the JSLP in 2022-23. 
 
An initiative of Jane Starr was the introduction of 
the Starfish Nipper program. Starfish Nippers is 
a lifesaving skills program designed for young 
people 6 years and above with a disability, 
including physical and intellectual disabilities and 
learning difficulties. Starfish Nippers is a 
modified and structured Nipper program which 
promotes inclusion and diversity. It features 
modified Nipper beach and water activities such 
as games, running, beach flags, wading, 
swimming and boards as well as activities with 
the club’s age group Nippers. 
 
The JSLP program involved nine intensive 
sessions from late December 2022 to mid-
January 2023. The program aims to focus on 
developing skills, confidence, and knowledge in 
a safe environment. Nippers learn about survival 
skills in an aquatic environment, basic first aid, 
resuscitation and rescues as well as practising 
the lifesaving disciplines of beach running, flags, 
board paddling and swimming in a fun and 
friendly environment. The JSLP also included a 
Club Championship Day and a Carnival Day. 
Surf Education was again embedded into the 
sessions with most groups also having the 
opportunity to meet the lifeguards and have a 
Q&A with them. Each age group had their own 
beach area; however, water areas were shared 
to accommodate having specialist water area 
activity leaders as well as sufficient equipment.  

The JSLP aims to encourage our younger 
members to stay involved with our Nipper 
program once they have become “Youth 
members”. It was great to see some of these 
kids take on leadership opportunities to work 
with our more experienced activity leaders. We 
hope to grow this mentor program in the future 
and keep all our members connected (old, 
young, competitors, patrollers etc.) as well as 
allowing our Nippers to meet some of our past 
Nippers! 
 
The JSLP season started off with a gorgeous 
sunny and warm day, and in fact we were 
blessed with great weather and conditions for the 
entire program. It was wonderful to see so many 
orange caps and smiling nippers on the beach 
(all 467 of them), with family and friends able to 
watch on and support them. In its first year the 
Starfish Nipper program started with three 
amazing recruits. Jane Starr embraced this 
initiative with all her enthusiasm, and all involved 
thoroughly enjoyed the experience. I am excited 
to see this program grow and flourish in the 
future. We had 47 new U7 Nippers on the beach 
this year. With the help of the AGMs, Junior Club 
Captains and activity leaders, the U7s 
enthusiastically embraced beach flags, poison 
ball, octopus, wading, duck diving, board 
paddling and quickly gained all the skills, 
confidence, and knowledge a Nipper needs to be 
safe on the beach and in an aquatic 
environment. 
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Pictured 20 - Under 7s competing in the Club 
Champs 

The U14 program was extended to a two-hour 
session this year. Largely lead by Darius Alekna 
and supported by the AGMs, with the focus 
being on stretching their boundaries, increasing 
surf awareness, and exposing them to what else 
happens in a lifesaving club. The U14 cohort 
worked as a large group of boys and girls 
together. They got to experience surfing at 
Second Reef, briefed on crewing an IRB, tried 
ski paddling and surf boat rowing, and paddling 
the SUPsquatch. A great achievement was every 
U14 Nipper completed “the triangle” 1km swim – 
proving what they can all achieve physically and 
mentally. They also got to complete lots of mixed 
gender races. As part of the U14 Nipper 
program, they had the opportunity to attend SRC 
camp. Once achieving their Surf Rescue 
Certificate, they were able to complete their first 
patrol all together. Without COVID-19 
restrictions, the Pizza and Movie night was back 
on the agenda. A great night for all at the Club. 
 
JSLP Volunteers 
A huge thank you to all our Age Group Managers 
(AGMs) and Assistant Age Group Managers 
(AAGMs) and Activity Leaders (ALs) this season. 
A special mention to Cath McCraith in her 

fourteenth year as an Activity Leader – you are a 
superstar and invaluable to our program! The 
JSLP are very fortunate to have so many 
dedicated and experienced volunteers. I greatly 
appreciate all your hard work and flexibility 
during the JSLP and the willingness to do 
anything I ask (especially at the last minute). 
 
The AGMs and AAGMs put a huge amount of 
time and energy into managing and supporting 
our Nippers and their families. Not to mention 
making each session fun, encouraging even the 
most hesitant Nipper, and celebrating the big 
and small wins with kind words or with a “Nipper 
of the Day” award. 

 
Pictured 21 - Anton Pound coaching at a Sunday 
Session 

Thank you to our Activity Leaders who kindly 
volunteered during the JSLP, always leading by 
example, and happily sharing their knowledge 
and tips. It is important to note some ALs are 
Nipper parents, but some are the top senior 
competitors from our Club, Masters competitors 
and some were past Nippers. 
 
Every morning the beach would be expertly set 
up by Andrew Welsh (Club Gear Steward) and 
Nick Clarke, assisted by our parent volunteers 
and just as swiftly packed up by them as well. 
We cannot thank them enough for this seamless 
operation. 
 
I was glad to see Mark “Hoppo” Hopkinson back 
on deck as our barbecue coordinator. Despite 
some small challenges like the potato shortage 
#nohashbrowns, the sausage sizzle was a huge 
success. Thank you to Campbell Fehring and 
Simon Merrigan for jumping in at the last minute 
when volunteers were scarce to keep the 
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barbecue running. A big thanks also to all the 
parents who volunteered to feed our Nippers 
each session and assisted in raising funds for 
the program. A huge thank you to Mornington 
Prime Cuts for their continued support of our 
Nipper program and the barbecue. 
 
Behind the scenes of the JSLP is a huge amount 
of administration work that happens before, 
during and after the season. I would like to 
recognize the tireless efforts of Felicity Perry, 
Sarah Somogyi, Alex McManamey, and Nadia 
Crescia. Without their hard work we would not 
have our online volunteer rosters, our 
attendance sheets, contact details, certificates 
written out and our data entered. I would also 
like to thank Diana McKellar for her help and 
support, especially with my last-minute 
questions. 
 
The Uniform Shop was open for business this 
season. Despite having our click and collect 
option (born out of COVID-19) we were able to 
have the uniform shop open for browsing, 
purchasing, and trying on gear. A massive thank 
you to Kim Williams, Sandra Williams, and Mel 
McPherson for running both the “click and 
collect” and operating the shop every Nipper and 
Sunday session. They were busy ladies over the 
summer, not only purchasing, ordering, and 
filling out the online orders, but they also 
relocated and fitted out a new Uniform Shop with 
the help of Jason Romari and Tom Mollenkopf. It 
looks fab and well done to you all! 
 
The administration involved with Nipper 
registrations is huge and very time consuming. I 
would like to thank Kim Williams for her work 
involved in this process and for the effort she put 
in to placing as many Nippers as possible. 
Massive effort – thanks Kim. 
 
Water Safety and IRBs 
We welcomed Kylie Clark who joined Adam 
Kyriacou as the Water Safety Co-ordinators this 
year. With a full program including Starfish 
Nippers, Cubs, Lions and U14 sessions running 
from 9:00am-1:00pm they had their work cut out 
for them. The water safety team ensured our 
Nippers were always safe whilst in the water, in 
co-ordination with Chris Oldham and the IRB 
team. A huge thank you to Chris and the IRB 

team who also assisted with the water set-up 
and laying the buoys needed for each session. 
Another huge thank you to all our Nippers, 
Youth, parents, and Senior members who helped 
with water safety this season. It is very pleasing 
to see our “old” Nippers return year after year to 
help with water safety. The JSLP cannot operate 
without you and our safety requirements being 
met. Thank you also to Bridget Barnes for 
collating all these hours and logging them with 
SLSA. 
 
Sunday Sessions 
This season we held four Sunday sessions over 
January-March after the JSLP. Each session ran 
for two hours with Nippers working in three 
groups: U8, U9, U10; U11; U12, U13. The 
sessions were a great opportunity for Nippers to 
participate with others, continue to develop their 
skills and confidence and fine tune their 
competition skills. Thank you to Jon Ford for 
assisting me to plan and coordinate these 
sessions and to our AGMs and ALs. I would like 
to thank Anton Pound, Luke Skehan, Dean 
Pullar, Chris Watt, Erin and Joris Van Delft, Sam 
and Georgie Hunt for their assistance. The 
Sunday sessions are a great way for age groups 
to work as one cohort and to gain from the 
expertise of some of the Club’s local legends. 
Special mention to Marc Aliotti and Simon 
Merrigan. 

 
Pictured 22 - Nippers at the final Sunday 
Session of the season 

Well done to our U14 Nippers on a big summer 
season full of lots of new experiences and as 
new patrolling members of the club. 
Congratulations to our Junior Club Captains. – 
Claudia Kogler, Bonnie Enever, Sophie 
Wilkinson, Oscar Skehan, Hugh Dawes and 
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Charlie DeFazio. They all embraced the role with 
energy and enthusiasm and forged great 
relationships with some of the younger Nippers. 
They assisted AGMs and ran activities 
themselves and even gained some public 
speaking skills handing out Nipper of the Day 
each briefing! They are all amazing young 
leaders and bring many different skills to the role 
– thanks again to all of you. 
 
It has been a big Nipper season which was a 
pleasure to be involved with. Without COVID-19 
restrictions, the Junior Sub-committee had a lot 
more flexibility in the planning of the program 
allowing for more Nippers, longer sessions and 
everyone operating together. The JSLP could 
not be as successful as it was without everyone 

pitching in. Big or small contributions, they are all 
important in getting our program running. Thanks 
to everyone that was involved and thanks to all 
the parents for getting up early and getting their 
young kids down to the beach on time in pink 
rashies and orange caps. I’d also like to thank 
the parents for completing the survey. I would 
encourage anyone thinking about getting more 
involved to “just do it”. I would personally like to 
thank Jon Ford and the junior sub-committee, 
Dean Pullar and Sharyn Clarke for all the 
guidance and support they provided me this 
season. 
 
Looking forward to seeing you all next season. 
 

 

Tarena Murray
Junior Surf Life Saving Program Coordinator 

 

Junior Team Manager’s Report
The Junior Competition Team has enjoyed a 
very successful season over 2022-23. We had 
Point Leo Nippers competing at over five 
summer carnivals as well as the Junior State 
Titles at Warrnambool. We also hosted our own 
carnival at Point Leo which saw us enter a 
massive 127 Nippers. A lot of those Nippers 
were competing for the very first time (with a 
home ground advantage!). Thankfully, it was a 
stunning day and a great experience for all our 
families, new and old, to Junior competition. 
This season focus has largely been on a “come 
and try year” as well as competing for “Team 
Leo”. Following on from the COVID-19 years 
most Cubs have not had a chance to get 
involved in competition and our younger Lions 
have not had a lot of exposure to competition 
and carnivals either. We introduced a pay-as-
you-go fee system this year which allowed 
families to pick and choose the most suitable 
carnivals for their families. As a result of this I’m 
pleased to report we had great numbers entered 
in our local carnivals, Mount Martha, and Point 
Leo, with a keen cohort representing Point Leo 
at most Junior carnivals and the Junior State 
Titles. 

 
Pictured 23 - Junior State Titles. Photo by 
Elizabeth Clancy 

This was a lot of extra work for Kim Williams. 
The Competition team and I massively 
appreciate this gesture and acknowledge how 
much extra work this was for her. We can’t thank 
you enough. 
 
Overall, we had some amazing individual results 
during the summer competition season, but as a 
team we had fabulous results.  
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Carnival Point 

Leo 

entries 

Overall 

Place 

Points 

Cosy Corner 69 Sixth 86 
points 

Mount Martha 116 Second 304 
points 

Point Leo 127 Second 326 
points 

Anglesea 18 - - 
State 

Championships 

48 Ninth 139 
points 

 
The Junior State Titles were held at 
Warrnambool over three days. It was a fantastic 
competition with lots of great achievements, 
friendships forged, finals made, medals won and 
a wonderful team dinner on the last night to 
round out a HUGE Junior competition season.  
 
Congratulations to all our Nippers on a fantastic 
season and for doing Point Leo SLSC proud! 
Thank you as always to all our parents, water 
safety, officials, IRB drivers and crew, trailer 
driver and other helpers who make Nippers 
possible. 

 
Pictured 24 - Junior State Titles 

Although the increase in Junior competitors this 
year is fantastic, it has also meant we have 
struggled at times to fulfill our LSV requirements 
to provide accredited personnel at carnivals. As 
a result, we have invariably had to rely on the 
same amazing, accredited people (especially 
Kylie Clark, Anton Pound, Chris Oldham, Luke 
Skehan, Chris Watt, Tim Farrell, Gabby Ackland, 
Matt Enever, Roger Devine, Tammie DeFazio, 

Dean Pullar) to be officials at most if not all 
carnivals and a lot of them officiating for all three 
days at State Titles. I cannot thank them enough. 
To continue to support our children and Point 
Leo Nippers I would like to encourage all parents 
to get involved. There are many roles to fill to 
support the competition team and the running of 
each carnival. Over the winter months please 
consider completing your online Officials course 
as preparation to complete the practical 
component early next season. You may also 
consider completing an Adult Bronze course. 

 
Pictured 25 - Junior State Titles 

It has been my first year in the Team Manager 
role, which has been a massive learning curve 
for me and hugely rewarding. I would like to 
thank all the people and parents who supported 
me during this season and in particular Kim 
Williams, Jon Ford, Tim Farrell, Chris Oldham, 
Andrew Welsh, Nick Clarke, Chris Watt, Luke 
Skehan and all the comp Age Group Managers 
and everyone who was willing to be an official, 
IRB driver or crew and everyone who did a water 
safety shift – I couldn’t have done it without you. 
 
I would also like to thank our competition team 
sponsors for this year - C. Fulton Building and 
Garden Supplies, the Tierney family, Vantage 
Fuels and Bluegum. Your ongoing support is 
very much appreciated. Don’t forget to mention 
Point Leo next time you are shopping for your 
garden supplies at Fultons! 
 
Thanks for the great Summer and ’Go Team 
Leo’! 
.

 

Tarena Murray 
Team Manager (Junior)
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Youth 
Lion’s Den is the Point Leo SLSC program for 
the U15 and U16 cohort (aka Cadets), following 
on from their Nipper graduation. This award-
winning program, sponsored by BlueScope 
Westernport, aims to provide our youth with 
special opportunities to remain involved in all 
aspects of the Club, as valued and active 
members. They have lots of fun hanging out with 
their lifesaving friends and enjoying life. 
Lion’s Den has now been running for three 
seasons and we often hear the question “What is 
Lion’s Den?” when people walk past observing 
the activities or see the participants wearing their 
exclusive Lion’s Den t-shirts. There is a 
comprehensive Cadet Handbook on the club 
website that explains all things Lion’s Den, which 
is a great source of information about club life 
after Nippers. 

 
Pictured 26 - A Lion's Den session with Kate 
Brooks 

This season, we again had a good turnout to all 
of the planned activities. We were finally able to 
have a pizza and movie social night, which was 
lovely to see given that this event was cancelled 
twice during the pandemic. There were beach 
and water sessions, a First Aid course and a 
two-day swim camp for the U15s (including a 
range of activities centred on wellbeing and 
water, and a great merchandise pack).  
 
In addition, and importantly, this group eagerly 
provided water safety to the Nippers, following 
the U15s completing their Surf Rescue 
Certificate skills maintenance and the U16s 
achieving their Bronze Medallion. This group 

also found other ways to be involved, including 
rostered patrols, activity leading and surf sports. 
 
This program could not run without the combined 
support of many people and the club committee. 
As the saying goes... ‘It takes a village to raise a 
child’. 
 
A special shout out to our fabulous young 
leaders who played a crucial part: Bella Warner, 
Madison Clark, Kate Brooks, Harry Atkins, Myles 
Irwin and Jasper Romari. 

 
Thank you to everyone else who helped in any 
way, particularly Michelle Royal-Hebblewhite, 
Felicity Perry, Tamara Heffernan and Adam 
Kyriacou, for your roles, volunteering your time 
and expertise. Thank you and gratitude to Anna 
Cahill (T-shirt design), Bluegum (merchandise), 
and BlueScope Westernport (sponsorship), for 
your much-appreciated generosity. 

 
Pictured 27 – A Lion’s Den session with Adam 
Kyriacou 

Finally, I would like to acknowledge the Lion’s 
Den participants. It was so lovely to see you 
joining in, smiling and laughing, particularly after 
the challenges of the past couple of years. You 
are amazing young people and a great asset to 
the club community. 
 
There were many wonderful moments this 
season, but I would like to end by sharing some 
of Adam’s wisdom from his wellbeing session.  
 
Five Ways of Wellbeing: 
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CONNECT; friendships, family, social 
participation 
KEEP LEARNING; always looking for 
opportunities to learn ‘new’ things 
BE ACTIVE; remain as active as possible 

BE AWARE; being present, living in the moment 
HELP OTHERS; volunteering, acts of kindness, 
doing things for others 
I think Lion’s Den and being a member of Point 
Leo SLSC ticks all these boxes! 

 

Fiona Romari 
Youth Development Team

Honorary Life Members 
Haydn Tierney 
Haydn’s involvement in Point Leo has spanned 
many years since Nippers through being 
involved in active patrolling, holding key 
leadership positions (including Club Captain, 
Board and Ski Captain and Swim Captain) and 
being an enthusiastic leader for Bronze and 
Swim camps and social events, and the Boxing 
Day Swim Classic). During this time Haydn has 
attained his Gold Medallion and also been 
awarded the Senior President’s Award in 2001, 
the Male Athlete of the Year Award in 2012 and 
the Masters Athlete of the Year in 2018. Haydn 
has competed for the Club since 1994/95. He 
has used his volunteer lifesaving skills as a 
professional lifeguard at Point Leo and 
Gunnamatta beaches and to provide lifesaving 
instructional services to schools.  
 
Haydn has been a foundation member of the 
Gary Tierney Foundation since its inception in 
2010. Haydn is pleased to honour the legacy of 
his father, Gary, by supporting those who 
demonstrate interest, commitment, and passion 
in the Club.  
 
Khali Gooding (née Williams) 
Khali’s passion for lifesaving all started at 
Nippers. Since that time, she has held key 
positions at the club (R&R Captain, R&R Coach, 
Cadet Coordinator, Uniform Shop Coordinator, 
Patrol Vice Captain, Patrol Mentor, Social 
Secretary and Bronze camp coordinator). She 
has been an active member at Point Leo with 
distinguished concurrent service as both a 
patroller and committee member. 

 
The roles undertaken by Khali have played an 
important part in keeping members of the club 
engaged with social activities, retaining, and 
growing the membership numbers of our Cadets 
and offering the competition discipline of R & R 
to members who would have otherwise not 
remained with the club.  
 
Khali has also been awarded the Junior 
President’s Award and Most Valuable Patroller, 
twice. She was also inducted into the Point Leo 
SLSC Hall of Fame in 2012 due to her State and 
National results as a multiple medal winner and 
finalist in R&R as a competitor and coach. 
In 2020 Khali returned to active service at the 
Club as an Assistant Age Manager for her eldest 
son’s Nipper group. 

 
Pictured 28 - Haydn Tierney and Khali Gooding 
with life member Andrew Barnes 

Congratulations to Khali and Haydn the club has 
a richer culture because of all that you both have 
achieved and given. 

Honorary Life Members Committee 

Gary Tierney Foundation 
In the inaugural Annual Report on the Gary 
Tierney Foundation, back in 2011, I said it was 

fitting that the first year of operation of the Gary 
Tierney Foundation had been bold, aspirational, 
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and successful beyond expectation. I felt it was 
“fitting” because the man in whose name this 
foundation has been established was a person of 
vision and action. Gary Tierney made things 
happen. 
 
I am pleased to report that again this past year, 
the Foundation has maintained this momentum, 
enhancing the visibility of the Foundation and 
growing its impact for the benefit of the Club, its 
members, and the surf lifesaving movement. 
This year saw the largest number of Fellowships 
ever being awarded, ongoing financial support to 
recent Fellows, and special grants to assist 
younger team members attending competitive 
and developmental activities as well as Aussies 
in Perth.  
 
Each of the Foundation Fellows is awarded an 
annual payment for three years to assist them 
with their lifesaving activities (covering costs of 
travel, equipment, or other financial needs). 
‘Aussies’ grants help with the cost of travel and 
accommodation for younger competitors. Details 
of the recipients of special purpose grants are 
not publicly disclosed for privacy reasons, but an 
overall accounting of payments from the Fund is 
listed below. 
 
Gary Tierney Foundation 2022 

Fellows 
The Board was excited to award Fellowships 
during the year to four outstanding young Club 
members, each of whom contributes to lifesaving 
in different ways. In addition to their leadership 
roles and projects, collectively they have 
recorded over 1,000 patrol hours and almost 270 
hours on water safety.  
 
Bridget Barnes  
Bridget joined the Club as a Nipper in 2007, and 
is now Club Vice-Captain, highly respected for 
her active and inclusive role in the Club, 
supporting and helping members. She is an 
excellent trainer, well organized, prepared to 
engage with all groups and great supporter of 
social causes and environmental issues. Bridget 
also competes with the Plovers boat crew (see 
the Boat Section report for details of the crew’s 
great competitive season.) 
 

Ella Swaney  
Ella has been with the Club since 2011 and is 
highly regarded by all Active members for her 
mentoring role, particularly with young female 
members. Ella has been a Patrol Captain, a Club 
trainer, a joint Club First Aid Officer, and is 
currently Vice-President Communication. Much 
like Bridget who she works very closely with, Ella 
is highly organized, particularly in the area of 
planning for the future. Ella volunteered on 
behalf of LSV during the pandemic, learning how 
to drive an ambulance in order to support the 
State’s paramedics at that very difficult time. 
 
Myles Irwin  
Myles joined the Club in 2013, and quickly 
became active patrolling, in the ensuing ten 
years clocking up around 400 patrol hours, often 
filling in for members who are unable to make it 
to the beach. A very good competitor, he is 
prepared to take on any role required at Victorian 
and interstate carnivals in order that Point Leo 
succeeds. Myles sits on the Club committee as 
Club Social Coordinator and has helped in 
setting up the new caretaker’s room, and the 
members multipurpose area in the newly 
renovated Clubhouse.  At a recently held Club 
Active members and Bobanarrings function 
Myles was a prominent organizer. 
 
Liam Whitehouse  
Liam is the youngest of the Fellowship recipients 
and has already enhanced his reputation as an 
incredibly diligent and committed patroller. He 
has just finished Year 12 and gained his driver’s 
license, and now been appointed a Patrol 
Captain. Liam revels in patrol and water safety 
duties with the Club, gaining his ARTC and IRB 
qualifications as soon as he was able and has 
become a qualified Club trainer. Liam has a “feet 
on the ground” work ethic and is considered a 
pleasure to work with on Club operational 
matters. 
 

Our new Fellows join an auspicious group of 
past recipients, listed below. 
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Pictured 29 - Gary Tierney Foundation Fellows 
with the Tierney family. From left to right: Ella 
Swaney, John Horwood, Myles Irwin, Bridget 
Barnes, Louise Tierney, Haydn Tierney and 
Mark Tierney 

Past Fellowship Award Recipients 
2011 Lachlan 
Pearse 

2017 Brittany 
Morgenthaler and 
Andrew Nott. 

2012 Victoria 
Roadnight and Tom 
McFarlane 

2018 Lachlan 
Robinson 

2013 Rose 
Anderson 

2019 Josh Doherty and 
Sam Richardson 

2014 Jack Gardner 2020 Rhys Cole 
2015 Bella Ford and 
Zachary Richter 

2021 Caitlin Robinson, 
Ella Laussen, and 
Isabella Austin 

2016 Caleb Gray 2022 Romy Lipszyc 
and Harry Atkins. 

 
Financials 
The Foundation aims to provide grants and 
bursaries drawing on donations and income 
generated from investments, while maintaining 
the Fund’s capital (corpus). Again, this year it 
has been able to achieve a largely break-even 
result, while seeing some small improvement in 
the Fund’s overall balance due to unrealized 
capital gains the long-term investments. 
 
Income  2022/23  2021/22 

Donations $13,500.00 $5,800.00 
Interest: 

Operating 

account 

$42.01 $17.65 

Interest: Term 

deposits 

$1,193.47 $1,344.59 

Total 14,735.48 $7,162.24  
   

Expenditure    

Grants $10,800.00 $7,200.00 
Certificates  $36.00 
Subsidies $3,850.00 $2,800.00 
Total 14,650.00 $10,036.00

   
  

Net Surplus 

(Loss)  
(Excludes 
revaluation of SLS 
Rescue Fund 
investment) 

$85.48 -$3,064.55  

 
Income over the year was $14,735 from 
donations and bank interest. Outgoings 
amounting to $14,650 comprising $10,800 in 
Fellowship Grants, and $3,850 in Special 
Purpose Grants or subsidies to younger Club 
competitors attending the SLSA National 
Championships in Perth.  
 
The Foundation’s long-term investment in the 
Surf Life Saving Rescue Fund was valued at 
$100,707 (2022 $96,978), an increase of $3729 
over the year. This increase reflects fluctuating, 
but overall positive returns in an ongoing 
dynamic global investment market. The Advisory 
Board continues to monitor this investment 
closely.  The bulk of the Foundations funds, 
$156,201, is invested with the Bendigo Bank in 
cash and term deposits at prevailing market 
rates of interest.  
 
As at 30 April 2023 the overall Foundation Fund 
balance stood at $256,908 (2022 $253,093), an 
increase of $3,815.  
 
The Future 
The Advisory Board will continue to provide 
financial support to allow younger members of 
Point Leo SLSC to fulfil their potential in surf 
lifesaving. The Foundation will provide grants or 
funding as Fellowship Grants or as Single 
Purpose Grants. Since its inception, the Fund 
has disbursed approximately $85,000 in grants 
while growing its capital base, giving the Board 
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confidence that its work will continue for many 
years.  
 
After a break in social activities and active 
fundraising in recent years, the Advisory Board is 
planning some additional activities over the 
coming season that will contribute to the 
vibrancy of the Club and the value of the 
Foundation. 
 
Gary Tierney Foundation Governance 
The Foundation’s finances are audited annually 
as part of the Club’s statutory audit and maintains 
a separate bank account to ensure that donations 
to the Foundation are quarantined and only used 
in accordance with and as specified by the 
Foundation’s Governance Charter. 

 
The Gary Tierney Foundation is managed by an 
Advisory Board. During the year, the Board 
consisted of Tom Mollenkopf (Chairperson), John 
Horwood, Haydn Tierney, Bella Ford, Kelvin 
Anderson, Tamara Brawn and Luke Treadwell. 
The Foundation’s Patron is Louise Tierney.  
 
As part of the normal succession planning, I have 
made the call to step down as Chair after 13 
years. I will be replaced by Haydn Tierney who 
will no doubt steer the Foundation to even greater 
things. My good friend and fellow Board Members 
from the very start, John Horwood, retires this 
year. As in so many things at Point Leo, we are 
indebted to John for all his great work over many 
years.  
 

Tom Mollenkopf 
Chairperson, Gary Tierney Foundation

Point Leo Swim Classic 
This season saw a return to almost pre-COVID 
pandemic numbers for our Boxing Day Swim. 
 
All up we had 504 registrations across all 
events, with a big surge of interest coming in 
the week before the event. We had to close 
registrations on the day to make sure we didn’t 
push the upper limits of our safety and risk 
organisation. The breakdown of registrations 
for the event were as follows: 

 
Pictured 30 - Lining up for the 2.5km Open 
Water Swim 

 
Point Leo Swim Classic (1.2km Open 

Water Swim) 

258 

Balnarring & District Community Bank 

Challenge (2.5km Open Water Swim) 

121 

Paton Estate Agents Beach Run (4km 

Beach Run) 

31 

Nipper & Novice Swims (400m Open 

Water Swim) 

45 

2.5km Challenge & 1.2km Swim 

Classic 

36 

400m Nipper/Novice Swim & 4km 

Beach Run 

1 

2.5km Challenge, 4km Beach Run & 

1.2km Swim Classic 

2 

4km Beach Run & 2.5km Challenge 2 
4km Beach Run & 1.2km Swim Classic 8 
Total: 504 

 
At the beginning of the day the conditions were 
benign, and it was looking like the pool 
swimmers who signed up for the swimming 
events might have an edge. That changed as 
we started to move into the main event, and 
we saw the famous Point Leo ‘shorie’ build to 
a size and an intensity not seen in a while. 
 
Fortunately, under the watchful eye of Andy 
Nott (Safety and Emergency Management 
Coordinator), Chuck Warner (Course Setup 
and Powercraft Supervisor), Myles Irwin 
(Powercraft Coordinator), Romy Lipszyc 
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(Volunteer Effort Coordinator) and Andrew 
Gibson (Starter) we were able to safely get all 
age groups started. 
 
As always, the event was put together with the 
assistance of Marc and Kim Aliotti (Beach 
Setup and Pack Down and sustainment for 
volunteers), Tom and Brooke Mollenkopf 
(Registration Area Setup and Management), 
Kate Stern (Medical Coordinator) and Andrew 
Welsh and Nick Clarke (Logistics) and Alf 
Treadwell’s team for keeping our volunteers 
fed from the barbeque.  

 
Pictured 31 - Logistics coordinator, Andrew 
Welsh 

We were also lucky to have Tamara Brawn, 
who not only kept a running commentary on 
each of the events, but kept the crowd 
entertained and informed. Tamara also helped 
with making our sponsors feel welcome. 
 
Our IRB drivers and crews excelled 
themselves in trying conditions, as did our 
water safety team that was organised by 
Bridget Barnes and led on the day by Georgia 
Cassell-Ashton. I apologise for not naming all 
water safety volunteers in this report, but their 
efforts on the day were exceptional and made 
all participants feel safe. The patrol on the day 
was well led by Amy Jones and it was great to 
see so many members make themselves 
available for patrol in the wake of our first 
COVID free Christmas period in a couple of 
years. 

 
Pictured 32 – Balnarring and District 
Community Bank Branch of the Bendigo Bank 
Branch Manager, Greg Hood, being 
interviewed by Tamara Brawn 

Even though they hoped no one was looking, 
Woodchucks superstars Nick Wood, Trav 
Cargill, Bryce Appleton and Chuck Warner 
were on hand in the background, but notably 
moved the finishing area that was ready to be 
washed away by the rising tide and surging 
shore dump. 
 
The boaties, led by Ant Williams, had the 
thankless task on managing entry and parking 
on behalf of the Foreshore authority. Thank 
you, Ant and team. 
 
I would also like to thank Simon Merrigan, 
Mick Treadwell and Andrew Gibson for their 
advice and assistance as former race 
directors. 

 
Pictured 33 - Mick Treadwell assisting with the 
nippers swim 

A special thank you to Haydn Tierney for 
designing and arranging the event t-shirts for 
both the competitors and the volunteers. 
 
Thank you also to Kim Williams for helping me 
with getting the registration system up and 
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running the right way so that our fund-raising 
efforts were optimised and for assisting with 
suppliers of caps and medals. 
 
Finally, a very special thank you to our event 
sponsors, the Balnarring and District 

Community Bank Branch of the Bendigo Bank 
and Paton Estate Agents, for their support of 
our event. I look forward to Boxing Day 2023. 
 

Chris Oldham 
Swim Classic Co-ordinator 

Point Leo SLSC Bobbas 
The Bobbas are a group of past Club Active 
members who continue to keep in touch with 
each other, stay aware of Club activities, and 
assist the Club in any way possible. The 
Bobbas were formed in 1968 when it became 
obvious that a number of the Club’s formation 
members were drifting away from lifesaving 
activities on the beach at Point Leo due to 
other priorities in their lives. Through various 
communication means we have been able to 
keep in touch with one another over the past 
fifty-plus years. 
 
The Bobbas hold three luncheons each year at 
the Kooyong Lawn Tennis Club and also have 
a Bobbas and Partners gathering in the 
clubhouse, generally toward the end of the 
patrol season at Point Leo. 
 
As usual in a group like the Bobbas there are 
highlights and lowlights each twelve months. 
One highlight related to Rob Woodhouse 
conquering the English Channel. Rob, an 
Honorary Life Member and past Club Captain, 
set out in the early hours of 6th August 2022 
from Folkestone Harbour on the UK coast with 
the target of swimming across the Channel to 
France. And of course, Rob did, in the 
amazing time of 10 hours 45 minutes. Rob 
was able to join with the Bobbas at our Xmas 
luncheon at Kooyong and give a vivid, “no 
holds barred” description of the swim. A 
fantastic achievement! 

 
Pictured 34 - Rob Woodhouse after 

conquering the English Channel 

Another highlight was the Bobbas and 
Partners afternoon tea held at the clubhouse 
at Leo on 19th March this year when we 
invited Club active members to join us in a 
casual, informal manner. While there is room 
for improvement, it really went well and, from 
the Bobbas point of view, we are determined 
to make this an annual event. 

 
Pictured 35 - John Horwood addressing the 
Bobba's Afternoon Tea 

A lowlight was the passing of Richard (Dick) 
Ellis in May 2022. Dick was a co-founder of 
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Point Leo SLSC, along with Alan Forster and 
Geoff Raws back in 1955, and was the first 
Club Captain and at the time of his death was 
Club Life Patron, a role that he relished. Also, 
during the year we lost Ian (Serge) Stuart, 
Rodger (Todge) Thompson and more recently 
Peter Merrigan - all proud Bobbas who were 
significant members of the Club. 
 
At the clubhouse on 19th March we arranged, 
along with his family, the scattering of Ian 
Stuart’s ashes in the surf at Point Leo. He 
would have been particularly pleased that Club 
Boat Captain Anthony Williams rowed out with 
his crew in the surf boat named Bobbas to 
scatter his ashes. A fitting end for Ian, who 
was a member of the Club’s first Bronze 
Squad back in November 1955. 
 
The Club held the Point Leo Swim Classic on 
Boxing Day, and hosted a Nippers Carnival on 

Sunday, 5 February. On both occasions 
Bobbas and their wives and partners helped 
with setting up on the beach, car parking, 
parking of gear trailers, food catering for the 
workers, preparation and distribution of food 
and drinks to officials and, at the end, the 
clean up of gear from the beach. All under the 
watchful eyes of Andrew Welsh and Kate 
Stern. And, of course, a cold drink and a chat 
at Dude’s Bar when all was completed. 
 
We are very mindful that the Bobbas are 
getting a little older, and we are aware that 
many of the Bobbas are no longer local. In 
fact, we are spread from Port Douglas in the 
north across to Perth in WA and everywhere in 
between. A recruitment drive must occur in 
order to include some younger talent. 
Whatever occurs the Bobbas will continue their 
commitment to help Point Leo SLSC, the best 
Club on the coast.

John Horwood 
Bobbas Convenor 

Future Project 
On Saturday 15th October, Point Leo had the 
opening of our latest building upgrade works. 
This building upgrade forms part of the second 
stage of the Point Leo Community Hub 
upgrade, which is part of a long-term master 
plan that will enable our club to increase our 
capacity and welcome new members. 
 
Most recently, the upgrade included an update 
of our fire safety systems, increased capacity 
for training, a flexible meeting space for 
members and community groups, and more 
inclusive and accessible facilities. Overall, the 
upgrade allows the Club to better utilise our 
valuable and beautifully located footprint! 
 
On the day, the ribbon was cut by our 
President, Julia O’Shaughnessy, who 
welcomed many of our club and Life Members, 
as well as some key sponsors and donors.  

 
Pictured 36 - Club President Julia 
O’Shaughnessy (middle) cutting the ribbon to 
open the new building upgrades with Club 
Vice-Captain Bridget Barnes (left) and Social 
Coordinator Myles Irwin (right) 

We are of course extremely grateful for the 
contribution of many people towards this 
project. There are a long list of contributors, 
sponsors and donors who have played an 
integral role, namely: 
Contributors:  
• Millar Merrigan who undertook the 
planning and landscape design work 
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• Our construction partner Lloyd Group, 
who delivered the building works 
• Our architecture partner Cox 
Architects, who produced the plans for the 
works 
Donors:  
• The State Government for their 
contribution of $159k through the Emergency 
Services Refurbishment Fund 
• The Federal Government for their 
contribution of $300k through the Community 
Development Grant 
• The Mornington Peninsula Council, 
represented on the day by Councillor David 
Gill and Mayor Anthony Marsh, who 
contributed $20k to the works 
Long-term sponsors: 
• Balnarring & District Community Bank 
Branch (Bendigo Bank), represented by Mick 
Treadwell, Heather Goddard and Greg Hood, 
who are long-term supporters and contributed 
generously to the previous stage of the Point 
Leo Community Hub works 
• Bluescope, represented on the day by 
Michael Hussey 
• Paton Real Estate, represented on the 
day by Blaine Paton 

 
Pictured 37 - Life Member Alf Treadwell with 
Michael Hussey from our sponsor Bluescope 

We also had local, state, and federal members 
visit the Club on 29th November to learn more 
about our works, including the recently elected 
local member Sam Groth, federal member Zoe 
McKenzie, and media and parliamentary 
advisor to Zoe, Matt Langdon. These local 
members were greeted by a number of club 
members including Simon Merrigan, Mick 
Treadwell, Tom Mollonkopf and Iris Cassell 
who gave them a tour of the Club and beach, 
and provided them with an overview of the 
next phase of the building works. 

 
Pictured 38 - Mayor Anthony Marsh with Luke 
Treadwell, head of the Point Leo SLSC 
building committee 

Of course, the Point Leo Building Committee 
has put an enormous amount of time towards 
the many stages of this project, and their 
contribution can’t be overstated. 
We'll now be turning our focus to the next 
stage of works, which includes creating a 
wheelchair accessible ramp from the carpark 
to our changing facilities, separation of 
vehicles and pedestrians for improved safety, 
increased lifesaving equipment storage, 
improved bushfire resilience, and some much 
needed drainage upgrades.  
 
 

Luke Treadwell 
Chair, Future Project Sub-committee 

Sponsors 
Vantage Fuels / Bowser Bean 

Mornington Prime Cuts 
Balnarring and District Community Bank Branch of Bendigo Bank 

C. Fulton Garden & Building Supplies – Hastings 
Paton Estate Agents Pty Ltd 

Gant 
Shoreham Surf 
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Supporters and Donors 
Dean Cherny 
Robin Hunt 
Angus Melbourne 
Stephanie de Medici 
John Gallagher 
Jane and Michael Starr 
Anton Middendorp 
Lions Cleaning 
Coogee Vic Pty Ltd 
Anthony Williams 
Adrian Burrage 
Dianne Summers 
Mark McDermott 
John Bongiorno 
Australian Orthopaedic Association 

Jan Williams 
Caleb Gray 
Alan Warby 
Michael Treadwell 
Luke Treadwell 
Elizabeth Cooper 
Phoebe Reid 
Vicki Hood 
Roger Devine 
Antan Spokevicious 
Michael Conyers 
Vantage Fuels Pty Ltd 
Elizabeth Grainger 
 

 

Gary Tierney Foundation Donors 
Louise Tierney 
Alan Warby 
 

AJ Forsyth Family Trust 
David Gibb 

Catharyn Stern and Andrew Welsh 
 

 

Recognition & Statistics 

 

President’s Awards 
 

 

Dick Catterick Award – (Best Club Member) – John Gallagher 
This award recognises a member who has made an outstanding all-round contribution during the 
season. Presented in memory of the late Dick Catterick who was the Clubhouse caretaker/supervisor 
in the 1970s and 1980s. 
 
John Gallagher joined the club in 2013 as a parent of nippers and has since become increasingly 
involved in making invaluable contributions to Point Leo SLSC across several areas of the club. John 
has been a member of the committee since the 2018/2019 season and took on the role of Secretary 
in 2020/2021. He was nominated involuntarily for the role of secretary and really had little opportunity 
or time to consider the decision. But in true John style, he undertook the challenge, and we as a club 
are all the better for it! John devotes much time to being secretary and continues to develop in his role 
providing his skill and expertise to both the Committee and the Executive Committee.  
 
John, with his legal background was instrumental in preparing the current constitution and continues 
to provide constitutional and other legal advice to the committee. John is committed to good 
governance and ensures the committee adhere to good practise. John is also a member of the 
ongoing building sub-committee and has been an excellent sounding board in the ongoing process of 
the works, especially given the hills and mountains during the pandemic. 
 
John is insightful and provides considered and compassionate perspectives to club issues. He 
operates in a calm, confident and consistently positive manner. He is always supportive of others. 
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Many committee members, I included, turn to John for his support and measured advice. John is a 
truly genuine person with a real affection for our club and our community’s vibrant and diverse life. 
 
In addition to his committee role, John is a dependable and committed member of the Woodchuck’s 
Patrol and has accumulated 36 patrol hours just this season, with 82.75 hours overall. He has also 
102.25 water safety hours over his career and often assists when aware that there is a real need such 
as Bronze Camp. Particularly noteworthy is John’s water safety efforts at the Point Leo Swim Classic 
providing assistance to those in challenging conditions. 
 
Well done John, you are so deserved of this award and in the words of our Club Captain “an all-round 
legend”! 
 
President’s Award (Senior) – Tarena Murray 
This award recognises a member who has made an outstanding contribution to the Point Leo SLSC 
and has demonstrated leadership in one or more Club and Life Saving Victoria activities, competitive 
performance, fostering of team spirit and personal conduct. 
 
I congratulate another legend Tarena Murray on being the recipient of the President’s Award. A bit of 
background on Tarena, she joined the club as a very young nipper whilst camping at Point Leo as a 
with her family. 
 
Tarena was a strong advocate for females within the lifesaving movement. During the 80s and early 
90s, she was a member of one of the first women only RnR teams in the state and country.  

 
Pictured 39 - Tarena receiving her award at presentation night this year 

Whilst always retaining her membership, she has become more involved again in recent years as her 
children are now young nippers. She jumped back in the boat as a member of our Female Masters 
Crew and continued to support the Bobba’s, as one of the volunteers at the Bobba’s brunch earlier 
this year! 
 
Our Junior Surf Lifesaving Program (JSLP) had over 460 nippers this season. This is a massive and 
intense program and requires significant organisational and management skills and whilst we have 
strong volunteer support from parents to support this program, parents are reluctant to take on the 
major roles of Nipper Coordinator, Nipper Representative and Junior Team Manager. 
 
Tarena Murray volunteered as Nipper Representative again this season and has been in this role for 
several years through the challenging years of COVID-19. She has done an exemplary job in this role, 
overcoming many issues. This season, as well as performing the duties of her role, she also 
undertook most of the tasks of the Nipper Coordinator. The JSLP was only possible due to the many 
hours dedicated by Tarena to ensure that the program went smoothly. 
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Last season and this season, no one volunteered for Team Manager, a role that is necessary if we 
are going to have a competition team represent Point Leo SLSC at Junior Carnivals. Tarena, wanting 
to support Junior Competition and realising the implications of not having a Team Manager, agreed to 
also to take on the role of Junior Team Manager. Tarena has done an incredible job in this role, 
reinvigorating interest in competition demonstrated by the strong numbers attending carnivals, 
particularly local carnivals. 
 
Tarena has dedicated an enormous amount of time, energy and focus to our Junior Programs. She 
has assisted in creating a positive and collaborative environment amongst the Junior program 
subcommittee. She does it all with confidence, warmth, and a sense of humour. I imagine at times 
she was stressed but she certainly did not show it! She always remained calm and handled the tasks 
at hand effectively and efficiently. Thank you, Tarena, for all that you have done for our Junior 
Programs. You truly embody the spirit of Point Leo SLSC. 
 
President’s Award (Junior) – India and Riley Mair 
This award recognises a Junior member (U15 – U19) who has made an outstanding contribution to the 
Point Leo SLSC and has demonstrated leadership in one or more Club and Life Saving Victoria 
activities, competitive performance, fostering of team spirit and personal conduct and demeanour. 
 
It is with great pleasure, that this year the award goes to two very remarkable young people, India and 
Riley Mair. It is rare to award two people an award, but it was impossible to split the twins and their 
incredible contribution to Point Leo SLSC. India and Riley’s involvement with surf lifesaving began as 
young Nippers. Observing older kids who assisted them, they were determined to give back to the 
Junior Program by doing water safety, encouraging, supporting, and helping the next group of young 
surf lifesavers as others had done for them. And they have done that and more. 
 
India and Riley attained their Surf Rescue certificates in 2019 and achieved their Bronze Medallion in 
2021 which was a very challenging time to undertake this course as it was during COVID-19 
restrictions. 

 
Pictured 40 - Riley and India receiving their awards at presentation night this year 

But this experience did not deter them and since achieving their Bronze they have remained highly 
involved. This season, India and Riley were joint vice-captains of Liam Whitehouse’s patrol group 
where they both achieved an impressive number of hours. India did 62 hours and Riley 59 hours of 
patrol this year, 29.5 of this being water safety for the JSLP and Boxing Day Swim. They are both 
enthusiastic, effective, and dependable patrollers. We often find it difficult to maintain full patrols 
toward the end of the season, but we could always rely on the twins to turn up and often encouraging 
their friends to also attend patrols. India and Riley have also been an incredible support to the Junior 
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Surf Lifesaving Program (JSLP). Throughout the JSLP season, India and Riley have been a valuable 
member of the water safety team; demonstrating effective leadership with the young SRC and Bronze 
Medallion members. 
 
India and Riley are both consistently looking to develop their skills and have attained their IRB crew 
award and ARTC. India also has her Silver Medallion Patrol Captain Award. Unfortunately, Riley 
could not attend at the time but is looking to upskill next season. They are strong communicators and 
excellent role models for the younger patrollers. 
 
They have both dedicated so much time and energy to our club and do so with quiet confidence and 
with a delightful demeanour being warm, friendly, and unassuming. I look forward to watching India 
and Riley develop as leaders and as club members in the future. 
 

Major Award Recipients 
Club Captain’s Award – Chris Oldham 
This award recognises a member whose contribution to club operations demonstrably enhances the 
development of lifesaving at the Point Leo SLSC or whose commitment to patrol operations, training 
and education, youth and leadership development or the Junior Lifesaving Program has excelled. 
 
Chris achieved his Bronze Medallion in the pre-COVID-19 era of 2018, with additional qualifications 
following quickly in the years to come. Since then, over a mere 5 seasons, Chris has volunteered a 
total of 201.9 patrol hours, and 84.5 water safety hours.  
 
What sets Chris apart, is not only his individual achievements, but his commitment to working as part 
of a team. Chris has been particularly helpful as a sounding board for both club and life matters.  
 
Chris’ dedication and care for the club goes beyond his patrolling and water safety hours. He has 
recently become the club’s IRB coordinator, and is integral to the Nipper program from this 
perspective. Chris not only contributed immensely in the coordination of water safety for the junior surf 
lifesaving program, but also ensured that members were welcomed and invited into the boats, and 
were well cared for in this area of our club. Furthermore, Chris’ involvement as an official since 2019 
has been crucial in the smooth running of carnivals and other competitions.  
 
The Boxing Day Swim Classic was an incredible success last year, and Chris’s leadership of the 
event was phenomenal to observe. There was something so calming about standing with Chris 
watching those huge shore breaks rolling in, as he would count the seconds between the waves and 
give a little nod each time his prediction of whether the IRB would make it safely through or not. Of 
course, not a single IRB flipped or was damaged under the guidance of Chris, which I think is a huge 
testament to his leadership and mentorship.  
 
Chris’ contributions extended even further, as he currently holds the position of Safety and Risk 
Officer on the Aquatic Sport Executive Committee. He is continuing to look for more, and is on his 
way to becoming one of our club’s trainers and assessors.  
 
Chris’ dedication, passion and unwavering commitment to our club and community makes him a most 
deserving recipient of the Club Captain’s award. His achievements inspire us all, and serve as a 
shining example of the difference just one person can make.  
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Outstanding Achievement – Starfish Nipper Program 
This award recognises outstanding achievement(s) or contributions in any sector of club activity during 
the current season.  
 
Starfish Nippers is a modified and structured Junior program for all abilities that runs alongside a 
club’s Junior program and focuses on beach and water awareness and safety. 
 
This season Point Leo SLSC delivered its inaugural Starfish program initiated and managed by Jane 
Starr. Jane has been an active member since 2004, a Junior Activity Leader from 2005 to 2012 and 
was an assistant Adult Bronze course trainer in 2021/2022. Jane saw a real need for a Starfish 
Program at our club and organised everything, from initial proposal right through to being the activity 
leader on the beach, to ensure its success. Her passion, enthusiasm and dynamism for this program 
is unbridled.  
 
The program ensures that children with disabilities and their parents can be involved with surf skills 
and lifesaving like their siblings, friends, and others on the beach. It is fundamental that all individuals 
have the opportunity to participate in a Junior program that focuses on lifesaving and water safety 
awareness skills. 

 
Pictured 41 - (from left to right) Georgia Cassell-Ashton and Jane Starr receiving the award for 

Starfish Nippers from Club Captain, Romy, and Club President, Julia 

At Point Leo SLSC, we foster a culture of inclusivity, whereby member and community diversity is 
recognised, valued, and championed. Inclusion helps support individuals to feel connected and 
valued and benefits the wider club by building a stronger sense of community. Starfish Nippers love 
being involved and included in a Junior Program and all members value the importance of inclusion. 
 
The Starfish Nippers program has a profound and positive impact on everyone who gets involved. 
The benefits flow to not only our Starfish Nippers and their families, but also to our volunteers/trainers, 
our Age Group Nippers and the club overall. 
 
The Starfish Nipper Program is a fantastic way to promote diversity and celebrate the differences of 
individuals at our club. Thank you, Jane and to all those involved, for bringing so much joy to our 
Starfish Nippers, their families, and all Nippers and club members. This joy was so contagious.  
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Patroller of the Year (Geoff Waters Perpetual Trophy) – Amy Jones 
The Patroller of the Year award is presented each year in recognition of excellence and commitment to 
patrolling. 
 
This year’s Senior Patroller of the Year is awarded to Amy Jones. This year Amy has stepped into the 
role of Vice Captain for the Legends patrol alongside Andrew Gibson. Amy has been a great addition 
to the Legends leadership team and contributed to the group having a very successful patrol season. 
Amy is a very skilled patroller and holds the Advanced Resuscitation Techniques Award, First Aid and 
also recently completed Silver Medallion Patrol Captain award. This is a brand-new award that is only 
held by three other members at Point Leo. Amy displayed extraordinary commitment to patrolling and 
public safety throughout the current season. She was extremely diligent in her set up of patrol and 
was always early to her patrol to ensure the days ran smoothly. Alongside patrolling, Amy is also a 
keen Masters competitor and she consistently encouraged other Masters competitors to join her 
patrol. She created a welcoming patrol environment and occasionally treated her fellow patrollers to 
lunch in the form of delicious nachos. Amy also helped with water safety on Board Camp and filled in 
with other patrol teams when they were short on numbers. This season she accumulated an insanely 
impressive 96.5 hours of patrol and water safety.  

 
Pictured 42 - Amy Jones receiving her award at presentation night this year 

Junior Patroller of the Year – Giselle Northcote and Zoe Warner 
The Junior Patroller of the Year award is presented to a Junior member (U15 - U19) each year in 
recognition of excellence and commitment to patrolling. 
 
This year’s Junior Patroller of the Year is awarded jointly to Giselle Northcote and Zoe Warner. 
Giselle and Zoe are a dynamic duo who were key patrollers on Patrol 5. Both Giselle and Zoe have 
completed the IRB Crew award and in winter of 2022 Giselle also completed Silver Medallion IRB 
Driver, making them both the designated IRB Crew and Driver for their patrol team. Giselle and Zoe 
had an incredibly enthusiastic attitude towards patrol and were fantastic role models to the younger 
members of their patrol. Even as Giselle began university in Tasmania this year and Zoe began Year 
12, they both remained committed to their patrol roster. Giselle performed 49.5 hours of patrol and 
water safety and Zoe performed 42.75 hours of patrol and water safety this season. Giselle and Zoe 
also performed a very impressive rescue while on patrol. On a very windy and choppy day, a kite 
surfer at Crunchies had broken his equipment and was floating off the point. After being notified by a 
member of the public, Giselle and Zoe jumped into the IRB and navigated both the shore break and 
trip around the Point before locating the patient. Giselle was able to radio back to the patrol captain, 
Bella, to have other patrollers meet them around at Crunchies where they carefully returned the 
patient and his equipment to shore. The patient was incredibly grateful for Giselle and Zoe’s skilful 
rescue.  
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Award Recipients 
Dick Catterick Award (Best Club Member) John Gallagher  
Point Leo SLSC Senior President's Award Tarena Murray 
Point Leo SLSC Junior President's Award India and Riley Mair 
Club Captain’s Award Chris Oldham 
Outstanding Achievement of the Year Starfish Nipper Program 

Vigilance and Service Awards 
Senior Patroller of the Year Amy Jones 
Junior Patroller of the Year Giselle Northcote and Zoe Warner 

Patrol Hours Award 

Amy Jones (Silver) 85 hours 
Andrew Gibson (Silver) 79.75 
Bella Warner (Bronze) 62.18 hours 
Chuck Warner (Bronze) 61.25 hours 
Travis Cargill (Bronze) 59.52 hours 
Myles Irwin (Bronze) 58 hours 
Madison Clark (Bronze) 56.93 
Andrew O'Hara (Bronze) 55 hours 
Nick Woods (Bronze) 51.75 hours 
Jason Romari (Bronze) 51.25 hours 
Charlotte Ashby (Bronze) 51 hours 
Nathan Millar (Bronze) 51 hours 
Tom Mollenkopf (Bronze) 50.5 hours 
Steven Northcote (Bronze) 50.25 hours 

Surf Sports Awards 
Male Athlete of the Year Myles Irwin 
Female Athlete of the Year Bella Austin 
Junior Female Athlete of the Year Miranda Aumont 
Junior Male Athlete of the Year Charlie Farrell 
Masters Athlete of the Year Frank Christian  

Team of the Year 
170+ Team Surf Race & 170+ Taplin 
Teams (Frank Christian, Tim Farrell, 
Jon Ford) 

John Marshall Swim Competitor of the Year Tim Farrell  
Board and Ski Competitor of the Year Oscar Skehan 
Beach Competitor of the Year Abi Morgan 

Junior Awards 
Jill McKellar Junior of the Year Max Alekna 
Nipper Parent of the Year Anton Pound  
Nipper Male Athlete of the Year Oscar Skehan 
Nipper Female Athlete of the Year Bonnie Enever 
Nipper Competitor Award Luca Phillips 
Nipper Co-ordinator Award - Female Sophie Wilkinson 
Nipper Co-ordinator Award - Male Charlie DeFazio  

Water Safety Awards 
Lucy Hunt 
Louisa Larobina 
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India Mair 
Riley Mair 
Bonnie McGuire 

 Jemima Perry  

2021/2022 LSV Awards of Excellence Winners 
Emerging Official of the Year – Kylie Clark  
President’s Certificate – Andrew Barnes  
 

LSV Development Camps 
U13s – Milla Clark and Arki Phillips 
U15 – Lucy Hunt 
 

 
 

LSV Female Leadership Network 
Amber Skehan 

Open Victorian Championships Results 
Max Alekna Silver U14 Men's 1km Run 

Silver Youth Men's 2 by 1km Relay 
Silver Youth Men's Belt & Reel 
Bronze Youth Men's Boards Relay 
Bronze Youth Men's Cameron 

Harry Atkins Silver Open Men's Ironman 
Miranda Aumont Gold U15 Womens's 2km Run 

Gold Youth Women's 2 by 1km Relay 
Bronze Youth Women's Beach Relay 
Silver Open March Past 

Iabella Austin Gold Open Women's Board Race 
Silver Open Women's Ski Race 
Gold Open Women's Ski Relay 

Ruth Clancy Silver Open March Past 
Madison Clark Silver Open March Past 
Murphy Clark Silver Open March Past 
Anouk Clarke Bronze Youth Women's Beach Relay 

Silver Open March Past 
Hugh Dawes Silver Youth Men's Belt & Reel 

Bronze Youth Men's Cameron 
Bonnie Enever Silver Open March Past 
Charlie Farrell Gold U15 Men's Ironman 

Bronze U15 Men's Surf Race 
Bronze U15 Men's Board Race 
Bronze Youth Men's Boards Relay 
Bronze Youth Men's Cameron 

Isabella Ford Gold Open Women's Ski Relay 
Caleb Gray Silver Open Men's Ski Relay 
Matthew Graves Silver Open Men's Ski Relay 
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Myles Irwin Silver Open Men's Ski Relay 
Emma May-Konning Silver Open March Past 
Phoebe Merrison Silver Open March Past 
Abigail Morgan Silver U17 Beach Sprint 
Isla Parris Silver Open March Past 
Jemima Perry Gold Youth Women's 2 by 1km Relay 

Bronze Youth Women's Beach Relay 
Silver Open March Past 

Luca Phillips Silver Youth Men's 2 by 1km Relay 
Nina Pound Bronze Youth Women's Beach Relay 

Silver Open March Past 
Layla Romari Silver Open March Past 
Hannah Scott Gold Open Women's Ski Relay 
Oscar Skehan Bronze Youth Men's Boards Relay 

Bronze Youth Men's Cameron 
Bella Warner Silver Open March Past 
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Masters Victorian Championships Results 
Darius Alekna  Gold 170+ Men's Board Relay 

Bronze 170+ Men's Surf Team  
Bronze 170+ Men's Taplin Relay 
Silver 55-59 Men's Board Rescue  

Nicola Alekna Bronze 170+ Women's Board Relay  
Gold 170+ Women's Surf Team  
Silver 55-59 Women's Board Rescue  

Marc Aliotti Bronze 170+ Men's Board Relay  
Bronze 170+ Men's Surf Team  
Bronze 60-64 Men's Board Race 
Bronze 60-64 Men's Surf Race 

Kim Aliotti  Silver 55-59 Women's Board Rescue  
Bronze 60-64 Women's Surf Race 

Frank Christian Gold 150+ Men's Taplin Relay 
Bronze 170+ Men's Board Relay  
Gold 170+ Men's Surf Team 
Gold 55-59 Men's Board Rescue  
Bronze 70-74 Men's Board Race 
Silver 65-69 Men's Surf Race  

Elizabeth Clancy  Bronze 45-49 Women's Board Rescue  
Nicholas Clarke Bronze 150+ Men's Board Relay 

Bronze 150+ Men's Surf Team  
Gold 150+ Men's Taplin Relay 
Silver 45-49 Men's Board Rescue  
Silver 50-54 Men's Ironman 

Hugh Condon Bronze 170+ Men's Surf Team  
Silver 50-54 Men's Board Rescue  
Silver 55-59 Men's Surf Race  

Wendy Davey Gold 150+ Women's Ski Relay 
Bronze 150+ Women's Taplin Relay 
Bronze 50-54 Women's Ski Race  

Deanne Davis Silver 150+ Women's Surf Team 
Bronze 150+ Women's Taplin Relay 

Sukanya Ellison-Whyte Silver 110+ Women's Surf Team 
Michele Ford Gold 150+ Women's Board Relay  

Bronze 150+ Women's Taplin Relay 
Gold 170+ Women's Surf Team  
Gold 50-54 Women's Board Rescue  
Silver 50-54 Women's Board Race 

Jon Ford Gold 170+ Men's Board Relay 
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Gold 170+ Men's Surf Team  
Bronze 170+ Men's Taplin Relay  
Gold 55-59 Men's Board Rescue  
Silver 55-59 Men's Board Race 
Silver 55-59 Men's Ironman 

Andrew Gibson  Gold 70-74 Ironman  
Gold 70-74 Men's Ski Race 
Silver 70-74 Men's Surf Race  

Vicki Hood Gold 150+ Women's Board Relay  
Samuel Johnstone Gold 110+ Men's Board Relay 

Silver 110+ Men's Ski Relay 
Gold 110+ Men's Surf Team 
Bronze 45-49 Men's Double Ski 

Amy Jones Silver 110+ Women's Surf Team 
Silver 30-34 Women's Surf Race 

Stacey Lethlean Bronze 170+ Women's Board Relay  
Gold 170+ Women's Taplin Relay  
Silver 60-64 Women's Board Rescue  

Catherine McCraith Silver 110+ Women's Surf Team 
Gold 150+ Women's Ski Relay 

Nathan Millar Gold 110+ Men's Board Relay 
Silver 110+ Men's Ski Relay 
Gold 110+ Men's Surf Team 
Bronze 35-39 Men's Board Rescue  
Bronze 35-39 Men's Ski Race  

Justin Phillips Bronze 150+ Men's Board Relay 
Bronze 150+ Men's Surf Team  
Silver 45-49 Men's Board Rescue  

Bronze 45-49 Men's Surf Race  

Virgina Porter Gold 150+ Women's Board Relay  

Gold 150+ Women's Ski Relay 

Gold 50-54 Women's Board Rescue  

Gold 50-54 Women's Surf Race  

Anton Pound  Bronze 150+ Men's Board Relay 
Bronze 45-49 Men's Double Ski 

David Russell Gold 170+ Men's Board Relay  
Gold 170+ Men's Surf Team  
Bronze 170+ Men's Taplin Relay 
Silver 55-59 Men's Board Rescue  
Gold 55-59 Men's Surf Race  

Dana Sawyer Silver 150+ Women's Surf Team 
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Gold 55-59 Women's Board Rescue  
Silver 55-59 Women's Surf Race  

Jane Starr Bronze 170+ Women's Board Relay  
Gold 170+ Women's Taplin Relay  
Gold 55-59 Women's Board Rescue 
Silver 55-59 Women's Board Race  
Gold 55-59 Women's Surf Race  

Dianne Summers Gold 150+ Women's Ski Relay 
Gold 170+ Women's Taplin Relay  
Bronze 55-59 Women's Board Race 

Haydn Tierney Gold 110+ Men's Board Relay 
Silver 110+ Men's Ski Relay 
Gold 110+ Men's Surf Team 
Bronze 35-39 Men's Board Rescue  
Gold 150+ Men's Taplin Relay 
Bronze 40-44 Men's Board Race 
Gold 40-44 Men's Ironman 
Silver 40-44 Men's Surf Race  

Jody Tulloch  Gold 170+ Women's Surf Team  
Silver 60-64 Women's Board Rescue  

Joris Van Delft Bronze 150+ Men's Surf Team  
Bronze 150+ Men's Board Relay 
Silver 50-54 Men's Board Rescue  

Erin Van Delft Bronze 45-49 Women's Board Rescue  
 

Masters Nationals Championships Results 
Frank Christian – 1st 65-69 years Male 2km Ocean Swim 
Frank Christian – 2nd 65-69 years Male Surf Race  
Tim Farrell – 2nd 50-54 years Male 2km Ocean Swim  
Frank Christian, Tim Farrell and Jon Ford – 1st 170+ Male Team Surf Race 
Frank Christian, Tim Farrell and Jon Ford – 3rd 170+ Male Taplin 
 

Junior Club Champions 
Age 

Group 

1st Place 2nd Place 3rd Place  Age Group 

Manager Award 

U7 Girls Charlie Alexander Lucy Summer Lucy Brown Charlotte Strauss 

U7 Boys Percy Williams Beau Miratana Joseph Wilson Billy O`Brien 

U8 Girls Charlotte Mannock Maya Franes Isla Mangini   

U8 Boys Humphrey Cooper Max Summers  Charlie O`Brien Theo Sauboua-
Pivan 
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U9 Girls Tabitha Clevel  Violet Ahern  Indi McLachlan  Evangaline 
Sobczyszyn 

U9 Boys Fred Farrell  Fred Hunt Harry DeFazio Angus Gooding 

U10 Girls Heidi Mitchell Kitty Johnson Petra Van Delft  
Eva Franses  

Charlotte Oldham 

U10 Boys George Cooper Archie Watt Rupert Mitchell Jonah Phillips 

U11 Girls Ava Rogers Evie Renato Ahna Spokevicius Matilda Day 

U11 Boys Freddie Merrison Toby Tomlinson  Connor Stewart Jasper Longford 

U12 Girls Milla Skehan Mimi Pullar Sophie 
McNanamey 

Jaya Singh 
(Towler) 

U12 Boys Jack DeFazio Oscar Laity Callum Van Delft Lachlan Heffernan 

U13 Girls Milla Clark Grace Oldham Charlie Pound Betsy Mitchell 

U13 Boys Charlie Pullar Arki Phillips Freddie Tomlinson Sebastian Bardwell 

U14 Girls Sophie Wilkinson Phoebe Merrison Matilda Higgins Sabine Thompson 

U14 Boys Max Alekna Luca Phillips Charlie  DeFazio Daniel Singh 

 

Junior State Title Results 
Sibella Brancatisano Silver March Past  
Edward Brown  Silver U9 Male Wade Relay 

Silver U9 Male Surf Team  
Greta Clancy Silver March Past  
Milla Clark Silver March Past  
Lainey Cleven Silver March Past  
Daniel Collins Silver U12 Male Surf Teams  
Jack De Fazio Gold U12 Male Beach Relay  

Silver U12 Male Board Relay 
Silver U12 Male Iron  
Silver U12 Male Surf Teams  
Bronze U12 Male Acquacameron 
Bronze U12 Male Surf Race 

Harry De Fazio  Silver U9 Male Wade Relay 
Silver U9 Male Surf Team  

Leah Devine Silver March Past  
Fred Farrell Silver U9 Male Wade Race 

Silver U9 Male Wade Relay 
Silver U9 Male Surf Team  

Eva Franes Bronze U10 Female Surf Team  
Thomas Hunt Gold U12 Male Beach Relay  

Bronze U12 Male Acquacameron  
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Frederick Hunt Silver U9 Male Wade Relay 
Silver U9 Male Surf Team  

Elina Kyriacou Silver March Past  
Oscar Laity Gold U12 Male Beach Flags 

Gold U12 Male Beach Relay  
Silver U12 Male Beach Sprint  
Silver U12 Male Board Relay 
Bronze U12 Male Acquacameron 

Violet Merrigan Silver March Past  
William Merrison Silver March Past  
Heidi Mitchell Bronze U10 Female Surf Team 
Sylvie Nienaber Silver March Past  
Jasmine Northcote Silver March Past  
Alannah O'Connor Silver March Past  
Charlotte Oldham Bronze U10 Female Surf Team 
Grace Oldham Silver March Past  
Camilla Perry Silver March Past  
Arki Phillips Gold U13 Male Board Rescue 

Silver March Past  
Charlotte Pound Silver March Past  
Charlie Pullar Gold U13 Male Board Rescue 

Silver U13 Male Board Race 
Silver March Past  

Henry Reith Gold U12 Male Beach Relay  
Fredric Sandow Silver March Past  
Milla Skehan Silver U12 Female Iron 

Silver March Past  
Silver U12 Female Surf Race 

Callum Van Delft Silver U12 Male Board Relay 
Silver U12 Male Surf Teams  
Bronze U12 Male Acquacameron 

Petra Van Delft Bronze U10 Female Surf Team 
 

Lifesaving Awards 
Attained in Season 2022/2023

 
25 Year Long Service Award 
Williams, Kim 
Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques 
Ashby, Charlotte 
Ashby, Jessica 

Bogdan, Nicholas 
Brooks, Kate 
Callaghan, Matthew 
Cole, Rhys 
Davey, Sienna 
Graves, Matthew 
Laussen, Henry 

Macaulay, Charlotte 
Swaney, Ella 
Whitehouse, Liam 
Age Manager - Online Theory  
Belcher, Robert 
Ellison-Whyte, Sukanya 
Johnstone, Natalie 
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Kendrick, Melanie 
Pearse, Lachlan 
Wisken, Natalie 
Age Manager Video 2022 
Johnson, Kailani 
Poore, Richard 
Bronze Medallion 
Alekna, Zoe 
Allan, Charlie 
Appleton, Charlie 
Ashby, Jessica 
Bertalli, Arabella 
Bogdan, Nicholas 
Clark, Kylie 
Collingwood, Joe 
Collins, Fenella 
Connell, Noah 
Cracknell, Peter 
Crescia, Charlize 
Curtis, Aine 
Davis, Deanne 
Devine, Roger 
Edmonds, Honor 
Findlay, Maxwell 
French, Matthew 
Haag, Ashley 
Haslock, Andrew 
Heffernan, Lucas 
Hicks, Charles 
Hunt, Lucy 
Johnstone, Ruby 
Kogler, Harriet 
Larobina, Nicholas 
Laughton, Abbey 
Lowden, Cooper 
Mason, Sarah-Jo 
May-Konning, Emma 
McMillan, Keeley 
Meredith-Smith, Sarah 
Middendorp, Holly 
Munro, Simone 
Murphy, Katherine 
Northcote, Alexander 
Ogilvie, Milla 
Paul, William 
Paynter, Zara 

Perry, Zara 
Redlich, Edward 
Reid, Catherine 
Reith, Annabel 
Romari, Layla 
Rose, Thomas 
Spokevicius, Antanas 
Turnbull, Jake 
Turnbull, Lucia 
Unsworth, Matilda 
Van Delft, Erin 
Van Delft, Joris 
Watt, Renee 
Williams, Emma 
Child Safe Awareness  
Aliotti, Marc 
Gibson, Andrew 
Irwin, Myles 
Gray, Caleb 
Laussen, Ella 
Gallagher, John 
Starr, Jane 
Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 
Cassell, Iris 
Pearse, Lachlan 
Clarke, Warren 
Leach, Fiona 
Lipszyc, Romy 
Clarke, Sharyn 
Barnes, Andrew 
Scott, Hannah 
Merrigan, Simon 
Farrell, Timothy 
Romari, Jason 
Wisken, Natalie 
Poore, Richard 
Van Delft, Erin 
Van Delft, Joris 
Sverdvik, Monique 
Ellison-Whyte, Sukanya 
Pullar, Dean 
Nottle, Kirsty 
Belcher, Robert 
Landau, Adam 
Cassell-Ashton, Georgia 
Eagle, John 

Johnson, Kailani 
Johnstone, Natalie 
Kendrick, Melanie 
Summers, Erin 
Thompson, Mathew 
Williams, Kim 
O'Shaughnessy, Julia 
Mason, Sarah-Jo 
Facilitator Bronze Medallion  
Morgenthaler, Brittany 
Facilitator Silver Medallion 
Patrol Captain   
McLeod, Darren 
Facilitator Silver Medallion 
Patrol Captain  
Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 
Facilitator Surf Rescue 
Certificate 
Morgenthaler, Brittany 
First Aid  
Ashby, Charlotte 
Ashby, Jessica 
Blythe, Arthur 
Brooks, Kate 
Callaghan, Matthew 
Clancy, Ruth 
Clark, Murphy 
Clarke, Anouk 
Cole, Rhys 
Davey, Sienna 
Dunstan, Oscar 
Ellison-Whyte, Sukanya 
Graves, Matthew 
Hicks, Yasmin 
Kyriacou, Noah 
Larobina, Louisa 
Laussen, Henry 
Lillywhite, Grace 
Macaulay, Charlotte 
McGuirk, Liam 
Pedersen, Ginger 
Perry, Jemima 
Pound, Nina 
Swaney, Ella 
Unsworth, Sebastian 
Whitehouse, Liam 
Wilson, Samu 
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Inclusive Beaches Online 
Drake, Helena 
Ellison-Whyte, Sukanya 
Gibson, Andrew 
Pearse, Lachlan 
Starr, Jane 
Summers, Dianne 
IRB Crew Certificate  
Ashby, Charlotte 
Callaghan, Matthew 
Hurley, Claire 
Macpherson Smith, Charles 
Mair, India 
Mair, Riley 
Merrigan, Cassandra 
Ralton, Archibald 
Warner, Zoe 
Woods, Sonny 
National Leaders Masterclass  
O'Shaughnessy, Julia 
National Women’s Mentoring 
Program - Mentor 
Ellison-Whyte, Sukanya 
Pain Management Certificate  
Clarke, Nathaniel 
Rescue Water Craft Operator 
Certificate  
Cargill, Zali 
Clarke, Nathaniel 
Resuscitation 
Ashby, Charlotte 
Ashby, Jessica 
Aumont, Oscar 
Barnes, Bridget 
Blythe, Arthur 
Blythe, James 
Brooks, Kate 
Callaghan, Matthew 
Cargill, Zali 
Cester, Hannah 
Clancy, Ruth 
Clark, Murphy 
Clarke, Anouk 
Clarke, Nathaniel 
Cole, Rhys 
Coleman, Annie 
Davey, Sienna 

Dunstan, Oscar 
Dyer, Kate 
Ellery, Andrew 
Ellison-Whyte, Sukanya 
Gibson, Andrew 
Graves, Matthew 
Hicks, Yasmin 
Irwin, Myles 
Kyriacou, Noah 
Kyriacou, Thomas 
Larobina, Louisa 
Laussen, Henry 
Lew, Jonathan 
Lew, Nicholas 
Lillywhite, Grace 
Lillywhite, Tom 
Lipszyc, Romy 
Macaulay, Charlotte 
McGuirk, Liam 
McKellar, James 
McKenzie, Alasdair 
McLeod, Darren 
Pedersen, Ginger 
Perry, Jemima 
Pound, Nina 
Reynolds, Ben 
Rogers, Megan 
Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 
Scott, Hannah 
Swaney, Ella 
Unsworth, Sebastian 
Warner, Edward 
Whitehouse, Liam 
Wilson, Samu 
Silver Medallion IRB Driver  
Northcote, Giselle 
Whitehouse, Liam 
Silver Medallion Patrol 
Captain 
Clarke, Nathaniel 
Jones, Amy 
Mair, India 
McLeod, Darren 
Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle 
SS - Core Official 
Tyrrell, Justin 

SS - Core Official (Online 
Theory Modules) 
Tyrrell, Justin 
SS - Development Coach 
(Online Theory Modules)  
Watt, Chris 
SS - Foundation Coach 
(Online Theory Modules)  
Watt, Chris 
SS - Senior Official  
Brawn, Tamara-Leigh 
SS - Senior Official (Online 
Theory Modules) 
Oldham, Christopher 
SS - Sport Australia 
Community Officiating 
General Principles  
Ackland, Gabby 
Cooper, Rob 
Ford, Michele 
Murray, Tarena 
Parris, Vincent 
Phillips, Amber 
Phillips, Justin 
Tyrrell, Justin 
SS - Sport Integrity Australia 
Anti-Doping Fundamentals 
Course - (formerly Level 1)  
Watt, Chris 
SS - Technical Official  
Ackland, Gabby 
Cooper, Rob 
Ford, Jon 
Ford, Michele 
Parris, Vincent 
SS - Technical Official (Online 
Theory Modules) 
Ackland, Gabby 
Cooper, Rob 
Ford, Michele 
Murray, Tarena 
Parris, Vincent 
Phillips, Amber 
Phillips, Justin 
Watt, Chris 
SSV Operator  
Clarke, Nathaniel 
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Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR 
Endorsed)  
Alekna, Max 
Angelo, Chloe 
Benson, Patrick 
Boyd-Bell, Angus 
Connell, Joseph 
Dawes, Hugh 
De Fazio, Charlie 
Douglas, Ruby 
Dunstan, Oscar 
Enever, Bonnie 
Findlay, Thomas 
Foley, Mietta 
Haag, Ashley 
Haydon, Lily 
Hershan, Eliza 
Higgins, Liam 
Higgins, Matilde 
Hynes, India 
Kogler, Claudia 
Martyn, Matthew 
Merrison, Phoebe 

Merry, Georgia 
Morton, Estelle 
Noxon, Poppy 
O'Connor, Fergus 
Parker, Poppy 
Paynter, Amelia 
Phillips, Luca 
Ralton, Ike 
Rose, Alice 
Singh, Daniel 
Skehan, Oscar 
Spokevicius, Tamas 
Strauss, Cleo 
Sverdvik, Dulcie 
Tomlinson, Arabella 
Unsworth, Sebastian 
Walker, Zahra 
Waters, Wilbur 
Wilkinson, Sophie 
Wilson, Samu 
Surf Risk Rating,  
Clark, Kylie 

Clarke, Nathaniel 
Ford, Isabella 
Ford, Jon 
Gibson, Andrew 
Gray, Caleb 
Jones, Amy 
Mair, India 
McLeod, Darren 
Training Officer Advanced 
Resuscitation Techniques  
Lipszyc, Romy 
Training Officer Bronze 
Medallion 
Swaney, Ella 
Training Officer IRB 
Clarke, Nathaniel 
Training Officer IRB Crew 
Clarke, Nathaniel 
Training Officer Surf Rescue  
Swaney, Ella 
VIC - D9 Accredited TAF - 
ART  
Lipszyc, Romy 

 

Volunteer Hours (includes hours completed at other clubs) 

Last Name First Name Patrol 
Hours 

Water 
Safety 
Hours 

Alekna Darius 38.5 47.5 
Alekna Max 31.03 14 
Alekna Nicola 18.75 15.5 
Aliotti Kim 26.52 0 
Aliotti Marc 18 0 
Angelo Chloe 18.26 13.5 
Appleton Bryce 48.4 1 
Appleton Charlie 48 15.75 
Ashby Charlotte 51 21.75 
Ashby Jessica 29.25 10 
Atkins Henry 18.57 4 
Aumont Miranda 14 13 
Austin David 7 0 
Austin Isabella 24.32 19.5 
Barnes Andrew 38 0 
Barnes Bridget 49.5 6.5 
Barnes Ingrid 22.5 2.83 
Beever Katharine 0 7.5 

Benson Amanda 32.24 0 
Benson Patrick 24.43 0 
Bertalli Arabella 5.5 17.25 
Bessell Emilie 0 11 
Blythe Arthur 0 15.5 
Bogdan Nicholas 5.25 24.08 
Boyd-Bell Angus 17.75 0 
Bradley Charles 26 6 
Brancatisano Rupert 0 7.75 
Brewer Blake Flora 9.75 24.08 
Brooks Kate 47.25 36.25 
Cahill Lily 35.25 12.25 
Cahill Max 4 5.25 
Callaghan Matthew 5 20.5 
Cargill Travis 59.52 0 
Cargill Zali 38.5 9.5 
Carne Mia 8 15.75 
Cassell-Ashton Charlie 39 0 
Cassell-Ashton Georgia 44 9.5 
Cester Hannah 0 3 
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Cester Nathan 0 4 
Cherny Dean 9 12 
Clancy Elizabeth 8.5 22.5 
Clancy Ruth 14.5 17.92 
Clark Kylie 28.68 27.25 
Clark Madison 56.93 18.5 
Clark Murphy 35.43 26.5 
Clark Orlando 4 21 
Clarke Anouk 17.75 20 

Clarke Nathaniel 
124.6

1 19 
Clarke Nicholas 15.75 19 
Clarke Warren 42.28 0 
Cole Rhys 163 0 
Coleman Annie 10.5 0 
Collingwood Joe 0 8 
Collins Fenella 6 2.17 
Condon Hugh 6.5 0 
Connell Joseph 24 10 
Connell Noah 19 14.5 
Crescia Charlize 5 6 
Curtis Aine 8.5 18.5 
Davey Emily 16 1.75 
Davey Sienna 25 16.5 
Davey Wendy 18.5 7 
Davis Anthony 5 0 
Davis Deanne 19 0 
Dawes Hugh 15.13 19.75 
Dawes Kate 2 15 
Dawes Sienna 0 6 
De Fazio Charlie 4 21.75 
Doak Max 16.05 24.5 
Doherty Joshua 8.75 0 
Doherty Paul 45.75 0 
Douglas Ruby 8 11 
Drake Helena 13 25.92 
Dunstan Oscar 0 4.67 
Edmonds Honor 11 2.92 
Ellery Angus 0 3 
Ellison-Whyte Sukanya 5 17 
Enever Bonnie 15.58 23.25 
Farrell Charlie 6 25 
Farrell Timothy 0 40.5 
Feehan David 25.67 14.75 
Feehan Elizabeth 8 5.25 
Findlay Maxwell 0 3.83 

Findlay Thomas 4 3 
Foley Mietta 10.33 14.25 
Ford Isabella 16 0 
Ford Jon 26.25 0 
Ford Michele 30.02 0 
Ford Nicholas 18.5 6 
French Matthew 6.5 20.17 
Gallagher John 36 4 
Gibson Andrew 79.75 16 
Gluskie Isabella 7 15.5 
Grant Mathilda 8 3.25 
Graves Matthew 26.16 0 
Gray Caleb 30.25 0 
Haag Ashley 1.83 10.5 
Handley Fred 8 0 
Haslock Andrew 16.5 8.75 
Haydon Lily 27.43 9 
Heffernan Lucas 0 22.25 
Heffernan Tamara 20.17 38.58 
Hershan Dylan 6.5 0 
Hershan Eliza 5 3.83 
Hicks Charles 8.65 14.5 
Hicks Yasmin 11.75 25.75 
Higgins Liam 8 12 
Higgins Matilde 15 15.25 
Hood Vicki 32.08 0 
Hoskins Ben 6.5 0 
Hoskins Charlotte 17 8.83 
Hoskins Oscar 0 6.5 
Hoskins Richard 8 0 
Hough Patrick 15.75 0 
Hunt Georgina 0 5.75 
Hunt John 0 13 
Hunt Lucy 8 28 
Hunt Matilda 8 9.25 
Hunt Samuel 0 30.5 
Hurley Claire 4 0 
Hyatt Ruby 8 3 
Hynes India 11 6.17 
Irwin Myles 67 11.5 
Jeanes John Michael 0 12.75 
Jeffrey Maxwell 3.32 0 
Jenkins Elizabeth 4 0 
Johnstone Ruby 0 3.25 
Johnstone Samuel 4 19.25 
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Jones Amy 85 7.5 
Kirk Hayden 3.53 0 
Kogler Amelia 6.5 4 
Kogler Claudia 8.83 13 
Kogler Daniel 0 10.5 
Kogler Harriet 0 4.5 
Kyriacou Adam 0 28.75 
Kyriacou Noah 4 23.25 
Lally Hamish 8 0 
Langdon Charlie 8 11 
Langdon Freddie 8 3 
Larobina Louisa 4 29.25 
Larobina Nicholas 5.17 10.84 
Latto Allan 20.85 0 
Laughton Abbey 0 20.25 
Laughton Cleo 13 12 
Laussen Ella 24 0 
Laussen Henry 8 0 
Laussen William 8 0 
Lethlean Stacey 40.5 0 
Lew Evelyn 7 0 
Lew Jonathan 9.78 8.5 
Lew Nicholas 18.92 10.5 
Lew Sophie 18.95 10 
Lillywhite Charlotte 44.5 5.5 
Lillywhite Grace 15.75 19.17 
Lillywhite Tom 8 6.75 
Lionnet Corey 12 0 
Lipszyc Romy 24.75 12.5 
Low Sarah 9 0 
Lowden Cooper 24.42 5 
Macaulay Charlotte 11.03 16.5 
Macpherson 
Smith Charles 36.58 16.5 
Mair India 32.5 29.5 
Mair Riley 32.5 26.75 
Mangini Max 4 3 
Mannock Toby 5 12.5 
Marcus Malcolm 14.5 0 
Martyn Matthew 9 0 
May-Konning Emma 18 25.75 
McCraith Catherine 24 9.25 
McGirr George 0 5 
McGuire Bonnie 10.03 27.17 
McGuirk Brett 5.6 16.5 
McGuirk Liam 4 16 

McKenzie Alasdair 29.75 0 
McKenzie Hamish 43.5 0 
McLeod Darren 72.97 0 
McMeeken Gabrielle 37.07 0 
McMeeken Lily 23.42 0 
McMillan Keeley 4.25 12.5 
Melbourne Amelie 8 0 
Meredith-Smith Sarah 5.5 9.17 
Merrigan Cassandra 9.25 30.5 
Merrigan Simon 15.5 4 
Merrison Phoebe 21.75 17.25 
Merry Alexander 0 7 
Merry Georgia 2.75 9.25 
Middendorp Holly 5.5 16.5 
Middendorp Marcus 8 0 
Millar Nathan 51 5 
Mitchell William 7 5.5 
Mollenkopf Thomas 50.5 0 
Morgan Abigail 15.75 3.5 
Morgenthaler Brittany 29.18 8 
Morton Amelia 0 14.75 
Morton Estelle 3.77 13.5 
Morton James 0 3 
Morton Matthew 0 13.5 
Mourney Bruce 15 0 
Murray Tarena 6 11 
Northcote Alexander 0 5 
Northcote Giselle 38.5 11 
Northcote Steven 64.75 21 
Noxon Poppy 3.77 10.07 
O'Connor Fergus 4 3 
O'Connor Isabel 8 4.5 
O'Hara Andrew 55 14 
Oldham Christopher 68.9 18.5 
O'Loughlin Brett 13.5 0 
Parker Poppy 20.93 2 
Parris Isla 16.5 24.75 
Patti Allegra 0 1.17 
Paul William 0 13.92 
Paynter Amelia 17 5.76 
Paynter Zara 34.25 7.67 
Pearse Lachlan 32 0 
Perry Felicity 7 8.5 
Perry Jemima 8 26.67 
Perry Simon 60.35 0 
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Phillips Justin 7.75 40.25 
Phillips Luca 8.83 8.17 
Porter Virginia 20.25 24.25 
Pound Anton 24 42.25 
Pound Nina 8 25.17 
Pullar Dean 2 1.75 
Pullar Oliver 0 6.67 
Ralton Archibald 5.25 6.5 
Ralton Ike 4 0 
Redfern Claire 0 2 
Redlich Edward 9 6 
Reid Catherine 37.25 0 
Reith Annabel 8 9.5 
Richardson Isabella 4 0 
Richardson Nicholas 29.27 3 
Riseley Brendan 21.83 0 
Robinson Caitlin 11.5 9.5 
Robinson Lachlan 9 0 
Romari Jason 51.25 10.5 
Romari Jasper 12 4 
Romari Layla 8 3.92 
Rose Alice 4 7.92 
Rose Geoff 0 7.5 
Rose Thomas 0 8.25 
Royal-
Hebblewhite Michelle 39.25 0 
Russell David 21.5 0 
Salaoutis Zoe 0 7.67 
Sawyer Dana 39.5 0 
Scoffern Damon 15 0 
Scott Hannah 28 0 
Shanks Ashley 5 0 
Singh Daniel 5 1.5 
Singh Shail 7 20.75 
Skehan Luke 2 50.75 
Skehan Oscar 14 17.25 
Somogyi Emma 6.5 22.75 
Somogyi Zack 5 0 
Spokevicius Ahna 0 3.75 
Spokevicius Antanas 5 0 
Spokevicius Tamas 12 14.17 
Starr Jane 22.08 5 
Strauss Cleo 18.5 15.5 
Summers Dianne 31.5 18 

Sverdvik Dulcie 0 14.75 
Swaney Edward 0 3 
Swaney Ella 27 11.5 
Talbot Chloe 0 2.5 
Talbot James 5 6 
Taylor Isaac 8 7.5 
Tomlinson Arabella 5 1.33 
Treadwell Luke 30 5 
Treadwell Michael 32.75 0 
Tulloch Jody 36 0 
Turnbull Jake 0 15.42 
Turnbull Lucia 0 3.5 
Unsworth Matilda 2.5 8.5 
Unsworth Sebastian 0 7.75 
Van Delft Erin 24.82 20.25 
Van Delft Joris 24.82 17.75 
Walker Zahra 7 11.33 
Warner Bella 62.18 19 
Warner Edward 61.25 0 
Warner Zoe 37.75 5 
Waters Brett 0 15 
Waters Wilbur 4 1.5 
Watt Chris 22.43 81.25 
Watt Renee 8.5 14 
Watt Zoe 16.5 26 
Wells Robert 27.07 0 
Welsh Andrew 30.58 0 
Whitehouse Aaron 10.5 0 
Whitehouse Liam 26.5 0 
Whiteoak Christine 9.07 0 
Whiter Chloe 0 2.5 
Wilkins Danielle 15 0 
Wilkinson Sophie 13 15.5 
Williams Anthony 5 1.5 
Williams Emma 0 5.42 
Williams Lewis 0 6.5 
Williams Riley 11 24.5 
Williams Sonny 0 8 
Wilson Samu 0 4.67 
Woods Nicholas 51.75 0 
Woods Sonny 43.78 22.75 
Young David 0 17.75 
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Membership Statistics 
Category All Male Female 

Probationary 1 1 0 
Junior Activity Member (5-13 years) 467 229 238 
Cadet Member (13-15 years) 92 38 54 
Active (15-18 yrs) 58 29 29 
Active (18yrs and over) 192 115 77 
Reserve Active 3 3 0 
Long Service 13 10 3 
Associate 459 197 262 
Life Member 37 31 6 
General 20 9 11 
Total 1342 662 680 

 

List of members 
Life Member 
*Deceased 
Aliotti, Marc 
Barnes, Andrew 
Batchelor, Richard 
Braithwaite, Peter 
Brawn, Tamara-Leigh 
Cahill, Murray 
Caraher, Michael 
Ellis, Richard D 
Ewert, Geoffrey 
Gibson, Andrew 
Gibson, Peter 
Gooding, Khali 
Horwood, Brian 
Horwood, John 
James, Geoffrey 
Jeffrey, Maxwell 
Kidd, Edward 
Knight, Ian 
McDonald, Clayton 
McKellar, Garry 
Mollenkopf, Thomas 
Morgenthaler, Stephen 
Munro, Simone 
Murray, Ronald 
Paton, Blane 
Randall, Gary 
Roberts, Donald 
Royal-Hebblewhite, 
Michelle 

Rydberg, Garry 
Tierney, Haydn 
Tierney, Louise 
Treadwell, Alfred 
Treadwell, Luke 
Treadwell, Michael 
Whillans, Peter 
Williams, Kim 
Woodhouse, Robert 
Buxton , Alastair* 
Ellis, Richard N* 
Ford, Peter* 
Forster, Alan* 
Forsyth , Alister* 
Kinsey, Geoff*  
McKellar, Jill* 
Silver, John* 
Taylor, Peter* 
Tierney, Gary* 
Tierney, Graham* 
Waters, Geoffrey* 
Williams, John* 
Long Service 
Christian, Frank 
Cromb, Andrew 
Davis, Anthony 
Garner, Jack 
Johnstone, Natalie 
Jones, Morgan 
Latto, Allan 

Laurence, Dayna 
Murray, Tarena 
Richter, Zachary 
Russell, David 
Tierney, Mark 
Williams, Anthony 
Reserve Active 
Condon, Hugh 
Foley, Andrew 
Wells, Robert 
Cadet Member (13-15 
years) 
Alekna, Zoe 
Allan, Charlie 
Appleton, Charlie 
Ashby, Jessica 
Aumont, Miranda 
Baillieu, Emmy 
Bertalli, Arabella 
Blythe, Arthur 
Bogdan, Nicholas 
Brancatisano, Rupert 
Brewer Blake, Flora 
Cahill, Max 
Carne, Isabelle 
Chatfield, Saskia 
Clancy, Ruth 
Clark, Murphy 
Clark, Orlando 
Clarke, Anouk 

Collingwood, Joe 
Collins, Fenella 
Connell, Noah 
Crescia, Charlize 
Curtis, Aine 
Doak, Sam 
Douglas, Lily 
Dunstan, Oscar 
Edmonds, Honor 
Ellery, Angus 
Farrell, Charlie 
Feehan, Elizabeth 
Findlay, Maxwell 
French, Matthew 
Golding, Stella 
Haag, Ashley 
Handley, Fred 
Haydon, Lily 
Heffernan, Lucas 
Hicks, Charles 
Hicks, Yasmin 
Hunt, Lucy 
Johnstone, Angus 
Kogler, Harriet 
Kyriacou, Noah 
Larobina, Louisa 
Larobina, Nicholas 
Laughton, Abbey 
Leeton Watts, Charlotte 
Lew, Sophie 
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Lillywhite, Grace 
Lim, Annika 
Lowden, Cooper 
Mangini, Max 
May-Konning, Emma 
McCraith, Hugh 
McGirr, George 
McGuirk, Liam 
McMillan, Keeley 
Meredith-Smith, Sarah 
Meysztowicz, Matty 
Middendorp, Holly 
Miglic, Max 
Mitchell, Delia 
Northcote, Alexander 
O'Connor, Isabel 
Ogilvie, Milla 
Parris, Isla 
Paynter, Zara 
Pedersen, Ginger 
Perry, Jemima 
Perry, Zara 
Pound, Nina 
Redfern, Claire 
Redlich, Edward 
Reith, Annabel 
Reynolds, Kate 
Richardson, Isabella 
Riggall, Rose 
Romari, Layla 
Rose, Thomas 
Somogyi, Emma 
Turnbull, Jake 
Turnbull, Lucia 
Unsworth, Matilda 
Unsworth, Sebastian 
Walker, Zahra 
Watt, Zoe 
Westaway, Clancy 
Whitehouse, Aaron 
Williams, Emma 
Williams, Sonny 
Wilson, Samu 
Wolfe, Oscar 
Active (15-18 yrs) 
Ashby, Charlotte 

Aumont, Oscar 
Bede, Frederick 
Bertalli, Joseph 
Bessell, Emilie 
Bogdan, Olivia 
Brancatisano, Hugo 
Cahill, Lily 
Calder, Hugh 
Callaghan, Matthew 
Cester, Hannah 
Davey, Sienna 
Dawes, Sienna 
Doak, Max 
Drake, Helena 
Edmondson, Eloise 
Findlay, Campbell 
Grant, Mathilda 
Handley, Fox 
Hellmann, Mietta 
Henderson, Charlotte 
Hershan, Lachlan 
Hunt, Matilda 
Hyatt, Ruby 
Johnstone, Ruby 
Lally, Hamish 
Langdon, Charlie 
Laussen, Henry 
Lebeau, Eliott 
Lillywhite, Tom 
Lionnet, Corey 
Macaulay, Charlotte 
Macpherson Smith, 
Charles 
Mair, India 
Mair, Riley 
McGuire, Bonnie 
Melbourne, Sophie 
Merrigan, Cassandra 
Merry, Alexander 
Middendorp, Marcus 
Morgan, Abigail 
Morton, Amelia 
Northcote, Giselle 
O'Connor, Lachlan 
Pullar, Oliver 
Ralton, Archibald 

Redlich, Jamie 
Reynolds, Luke 
Scoffern, Skye 
Singh, Stephanie 
Talbot, James 
Taylor, Isaac 
Warner, Zoe 
Westaway, Charlotte 
Whiteoak, Nicholas 
Whiter, Chloe 
Williams, Lewis 
Woods, Sonny 
Active (18yrs and over) 
Alekna, Darius 
Alekna, Nicola 
Aliotti, Kim 
Allsopp, Abby 
Appleton, Bryce 
Atkins, Henry 
Austin, Cameron 
Austin, David 
Austin, Isabella 
Barnes, Bridget 
Barnes, Ingrid 
Beever, Katharine 
Blaak, Emily 
Bradley, Charles 
Brooks, Kate 
Cargill, Travis 
Cargill, Zali 
Cassell-Ashton, Charlie 
Cassell-Ashton, 
Georgia 
Cassell-Ashton, Kate 
Cester, Nathan 
Cherny, Dean 
Clancy, Elizabeth 
Clark, Kylie 
Clark, Madison 
Clarke, Nathaniel 
Clarke, Nicholas 
Cole, Rhys 
Coleman, Annie 
Cracknell, Peter 
Curtis, Bernie 
Davey, Emily 

Davey, Wendy 
Davis, Deanne 
Dawes, Kate 
Dawes, Lilly 
Doherty, Jesse 
Doherty, Joshua 
Doherty, Paul 
Edmonds, Campbell 
Edmonds, Finley 
Edmonds, Kipling 
Ellison-Whyte, 
Sukanya 
Farrell, Timothy 
Feehan, David 
Findlay, Edward 
Ford, Isabella 
Ford, Jon 
Ford, Michele 
Ford, Nicholas 
Francis, Adam 
Francis, Sebastian 
Gallagher, John 
Gearing, David 
Gluskie, Isabella 
Graves, Matthew 
Gray, Caleb 
Handley, Grace 
Haslock, Andrew 
Heffernan, Tamara 
Hershan, Dylan 
Hood, Vicki 
Hoskins, Ben 
Hoskins, Charlotte 
Hoskins, Oscar 
Hough, Patrick 
Howell, Kate  
Hunt, Georgina 
Hunt, John 
Hunt, Samuel 
Hurley, Claire 
Irwin, Myles 
Jeanes, John Michael 
Jenkins, Elizabeth 
Johnson, Kailani 
Johnstone, Samuel 
Jones, Amy 
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Kirk, Hayden 
Kogler, Amelia 
Kogler, Daniel 
Kyriacou, Adam 
Kyriacou, Lucy 
Langdon, Freddie 
Larobina, Olivia 
Laussen, Ella 
Laussen, William 
Leach, Fiona 
Lethlean, Stacey 
Lew, Jonathan 
Lew, Nicholas 
Lillywhite, Charlotte 
Lipszyc, Adam 
Lipszyc, Romy 
Low, Sarah 
Lowden, Tracey 
Macaulay, Alexandra 
Mannock, Caroline 
Mannock, Toby 
Marcus, Malcolm 
McCraith, Catherine 
McGuire, Stephen 
McGuirk, Brett 
McKellar, James 
McKenzie, Alasdair 
McKenzie, Euan 
McKenzie, Hamish 
McLeish, Skye 
McLeod, Darren 
McMeeken, Gabrielle 
McMeeken, Lily 
Melbourne, Amelie 
Melbourne, Angus 
Merrigan, Simon 
Mezger, Harry 
Millar, Nathan 
Mitchell, William 
Morgenthaler, Brittany 
Morgenthaler, Ky 
Morton, James 
Morton, Matthew 
Mourney, Bruce 
Murray, Scott 
Nickless, Rachel 

Northcote, Steven 
Nott, Andrew 
O'Connor, Tim 
Ogilvie, Connor 
O'Hara, Andrew 
Oldham, Christopher 
O'Loughlin, Brett 
Pascoe, Damon 
Paul, William 
Pearse, Lachlan 
Perry, Felicity 
Perry, Simon 
Phillips, Justin 
Porter, Virginia 
Pound, Anton 
Pullar, Dean 
Redlich, Rory 
Reid, Catherine 
Reynolds, Ben 
Richardson, Jacob 
Richardson, Nicholas 
Richardson, Samuel 
Riseley, Brendan 
Robinson, Caitlin 
Robinson, Lachlan 
Romari, Jason 
Romari, Jasper 
Rose, Geoff 
Russell, Jemima 
Russell, Kaitlin 
Russell, Mietta 
Sawyer, Dana 
Scoffern, Damon 
Scoffern, Tulle 
Scott, Hannah 
Shanks, Ashley 
Silver, David 
Singh, Shail 
Skehan, Amber 
Skehan, Luke 
Starr, Jane 
Strauss, Christian 
Summers, Dianne 
Swaney, Edward 
Swaney, Ella 
Swaney, Lachlan 

Talbot, Chloe 
Tulloch, Jody 
Tyrrell, Justin 
Van Delft, Erin 
Van Delft, Joris 
Warner, Bella 
Warner, Edward 
Warner, Sam 
Waters, Brett 
Watt, Chris 
Watt, Renee 
Welsh, Andrew 
Westaway, Michael 
Whitehouse, Liam 
Whiteoak, Brett 
Whiteoak, Christine 
Wilkins, Danielle 
Williams, Riley 
Woods, Nicholas 
Wright, Elizabeth 
Young, David 
Young, Harrison 
Young, James 
Associate 
Ackland, Gabby 
Adnams, Kris 
Agosta, Luke 
Agosta, Megan 
Ahern, Daniel 
Ait Ouakrim, Driss 
Akkerman, Brad 
Akkerman, Georgina 
Alexander, Gabrielle 
Alexander, James 
Anderson, James 
Anderson, Kelvin 
Anderson, Lisa 
Anderson, Susanne 
Ashby, Vanessa 
Ashby, Warren 
Atkins, Emily 
Atzemakis, Esmeralda 
Austin, Karen 
Barber, Caroline 
Bardwell, Rohan 
Barker, Melinda 

Barnes, Sandra 
Batty, Felicity 
Batty, James 
Belcher, Robert 
Benetti-Hille, Marika 
Benson, Amanda 
Bertalli, Cameron 
Bertalli, Julia 
Biggs, Matthew 
Black, Cassie 
Blake, Alice 
Blythe, James 
Blythe, Miffany 
Bock, Justin 
Bombas, Venetia 
Bonfield, Stephen 
Brancatisano, Mark 
Bridger, Eleanor 
Briganti, Amanda 
Brookes, Simone 
Brown, Mitchell 
Brown, Simon 
Brown, Thomas 
Bryant, Nick 
Buchanan, Craig 
Cameron, Matthew 
Campbell, Kate 
Campbell, Peta 
Cantwell-Cargill, Lisa 
Carne, Peter 
Carroll, Monique 
Carter, Louisa 
Cassell, Iris 
Cester, Mark 
Cester, Roberta 
Chadwick, Kerri 
Chadwick, Timothy 
Chandrajit, Surendra 
Chatfield, Simon 
Cheong, Jeanie 
Cherny, Tanya 
Clancy, William 
Clark, Rowan 
Clarke, Sharyn 
Clarke, Warren 
Cleven, David 
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Collings, Anthony 
Collins, Brett 
Collins, Rhys 
Connell, Benjamin 
Cooper, Ben 
Cooper, Elizabeth 
Cooper, Rob 
Corriero, Angela 
Costuna, Emmanuel 
Couston, Nicky 
Crescia, Marco 
Crescia, Nadia 
Crisp, Joanne 
Crone, Rebecca 
Crowe, Simon 
Crowe, Sophie 
Cummins, Celia 
Curry, Luke 
D'Amico, Melissa 
D'Angelo, Amy 
Date, James 
Davenport, Clyde 
Davenport, Deborah 
Davenport, Lauren 
Davenport, Lucy 
Davison, Antonia 
Dawes, Kynan 
Day, Amanda 
Day, Benjamin 
De Fazio, Tamie 
De Fazio, Vincent 
Demkiw, Stephanie 
Denisenko, Georgia 
Devine, Alexandra 
Devine, Roger 
Doak, Simon 
Doquile, Kate 
Doquile, Matthew 
Douglas, Jody 
Douglas, Naomi 
Dowling, Emma 
D'Souza, Stephen 
Dubois, David 
Dunstan, Greg 
Dunstan, Simone 
Dyer, Kate 

Dymond, Samantha 
Eagle, John 
Edmonds, Amber 
Edmonds, William 
Ellery, Andrea 
Ellery, Andrew 
Elliott, Caroline 
Elliott, Elise 
Elliott, Tom 
Enever, Matthew 
Everett, Amanda 
Farrell, Daniella 
Fehring, Campbell 
Findlay, Anna 
Findlay, Peter 
Fitzpatrick, Nicole 
Ford, Emma 
Forsyth, Fleur 
Franes, Alex 
Franes Cid, Yolanda 
Gallace, Matt 
Gamlen, Alan 
Gamlen, Melinda 
Garner, Katrina 
Garner, Peter 
Gasparini, Anthony 
Gatta-Castel, Michael 
Gearing, Julie 
George, Alexandra 
Gluyas, Sally 
Grant, Chris 
Grant, Karen 
Gray, Rebecca 
Greenwood-Smith, 
Catherine 
Gregory, Janine 
Gregory, Robert 
Griffith, Ian 
Griffiths, Simon 
Guy, Elisabeth 
Guymer, Warren 
Gyles, Lachlan 
Handley, Wendy 
Hansen, Jocelyn 
Hansen, Richard 
Hansen, Soren 

Hargreaves, Georgia 
Harrison, Charlie 
Harrison, Jessica 
Hawker, Carey 
Henderson, Andrew 
Henderson, Olivia 
Heppell, Martin 
Herbstritt, Jemma 
Hershan, Amy 
Hershan, Dion 
Hewitt, Niall 
Hicks, Georgia 
Hicks, Janet 
Hicks, Paul-Thomas 
Hill, Karen 
Hodges, Ryan 
Hogg, Brendon 
Holland, David 
Holland, Sylvia 
Holt, Simon 
Hone, Imogen 
Hopkinson, Mark 
Hopkinson, Tatenda 
Horne, Craig 
Horne, Michelle 
Hoskins, Richard 
Houlihan, Christine 
Hourihan, Bianca 
Howe, Michelle 
Howell, Deborah 
Howell, Rob 
Huddle, Samantha 
Humphrey, Brett 
Hunt, Eliza 
Hunt, James 
Hunter, Alix 
Hutton, Crystal 
Hutton, Jonathon 
Hyams, Ann 
Hyams, Anthony 
Hyams, Rob 
Hynes, Craig 
Hyslop, John 
Hyslop, Karin 
Irwin, Amanda 
Irwin, Warwick 

Jeanes, Alina 
Johnstone, Chris 
Johnstone, Irene 
Kay, Sarah 
Kemp, Nathalie 
Kendrick, Melanie 
Khor, Joyce 
Kimmerle, Rita 
King, Daniel 
Kitto, Cassandra 
Kleverlaan, Monty 
Kloe, Samantha 
Knights, Scott 
Kogler, Thea 
Kong, Sui 
Konstantinou, Nicky 
Kostiuk, Renee 
Kottek, Wilga 
Kulatunge, Dilshan 
Kunaratnam, Hamsa 
Laing, Stuart 
Laity, Kim 
Lally, Kate 
Lally, Simon 
Landau, Adam 
Landau, Shanaz 
Langdon, Tim 
Langford, Craig 
Langseth, Jannicke 
Larkin, Claire 
Larobina, Amanda 
Latchford, Prudence 
Lau, Lok 
Laughton, Carolyn 
Laughton, Simon 
Lawry, Damian 
Lawry, Elizabeth 
Lebeau, Arthur 
Lee, Emily 
Leonard, Tina 
Levy, Anouche 
Levy, Michael 
Lew, Evelyn 
Lightfoot, Jessica 
Lillywhite, David 
Lillywhite, Karen 
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Lloyd, Belinda 
Lloyd, Dustin 
Loughnan, Melissa 
Lundine, Kristopher 
Lundine, Michelle 
Macaulay, Geoff 
Mackie, Andrew 
Macnaughton, Michele 
Magree, Margot 
Mair, Catherine 
Majcher, Kate 
Mallet, Neil 
Mangini, Amanda 
Mangini, Kyle 
Margis, Belinda 
Marks, Sally 
Martyn, Penelope 
Martyn, Simon 
Mason, Sarah-Jo 
Mather, Laura 
Mathieson, Aaron 
McAllister, Craig 
McCraith, Stuart 
McDermott, Mark 
McKeachie, Jennifer 
McKellar, Dianna 
Mclachlan, Hamish 
Mclachlan, Sophie 
Mclaurin, Xavier 
McManamey, 
Alexandra 
Mcmicking, Hamish 
McPherson, Cameron 
McPherson, Melissa 
Melbourne, Jennifer 
Mellor, Andrew 
Meredith-Smith, Emily 
Meredith-Smith, 
Jonathon 
Merrigan, Sarah 
Merrison, Edward 
Merry, Chris 
Merry, Verena 
Meszaros, William 
Mezger, Simon 
Middendorp, Robyn 
Miglic Dean, Katherine 

Milesi, Jessica 
Mitchell, Murray 
Mollenkopf, Lucinda 
Morgan, Vanessa 
Morley, Julia 
Morley, Leighton 
Morris, Emma 
Mullan, Kate 
Munro, Chris 
Murphy, Katherine 
Murray, Alice 
Myers, Stacey 
Naarden, Sarah 
Neal, Campbell 
Neal, David 
Neal, Victoria 
Nienaber, Naomi 
Nixon, Qing 
Nixon, Timothy 
Norris, Sallie 
Northcote, Hayley 
Norton, Jacinda 
Norton, Thomas 
Nottle, Kirsty 
Noxon, Justin 
Nussbaum, Stephen 
Oaten, Marni 
O'Brien, Darragh 
O'Brien, Samantha 
O'Connor, Chris 
Ogilvie, Brooke 
Ogilvie, Nicholas 
O'Keefe, Christine 
Oldham, Melaina 
O'Neil, Sophie 
O'Shaughnessy, Julia 
Pagliaro, Belinda 
Parker, Andrew 
Parris, Vincent 
Paterson, Brad 
Patti, Brendan 
Patti, Julie 
Paul, Courtney 
Paynter, David 
Peace, Rachel 

Perman-Swenson, 
Kate 
Perry, Ben 
Phillips, Amber 
Phillips, Stephen 
Pitt, Simon 
Poore, Richard 
Pound, Jane 
Pratt, Shannon 
Rae, Kathryn 
Ralton, Sam 
Randles, William 
Redfern, Leanne 
Redlich, Christina 
Redlich, Erin 
Redlich, Robert 
Redward, Emily 
Reid, Matt 
Reith, Simon 
Renato, Julie 
Renato, Sebastian 
Renison, Krysha 
Rhodes, Alexander 
Rhodes, Anthea 
Richards, Regan 
Richardson, Rachel 
Riggall, William 
Rizzon, Enrico 
Rogers, Ben 
Rogers, Megan 
Ross, Alasdair 
Rouse, Hannah 
Rush, Joanne 
Russell, Sharon 
Ryan, Rachel 
Rydberg, Christine 
Sahely, Jesse 
Sandow, Pippa 
Sauboua, Jean 
Scher, Kim 
Scoffern, Felicity 
Scott, Daniel 
Sexton, Kathleen 
Silver, Diane 
Singh, Kasha 
Slater, Bronwen 

Smith, Matthew 
Snow, Gillian 
Snow, Hayden 
Snow, Jeremy 
Snow, Matthew 
Sobczyszyn, Peter 
Somogyi, Peter 
Somogyi, Sarah 
Spedding, Ben 
Spedding, Jodie 
Spokevicius, Antanas 
Stagoll, Eve 
Starr, Emily 
Starr, Michael 
Stern, Kate 
Steven, Mark 
Stewart, Carolyn 
Stewart, Grant 
Sullivan, Caitlin 
Sullivan, Glen 
Summers, Erin 
Summers, Peter 
Sverdvik, Monique 
Swan, Kathy 
Swanson, Cynthia 
Talbot, Daryl 
Talbot, Simon 
Taylor, Judith 
Taylor, Louise 
Thomas, Amanda 
Thomas, Belinda 
Thomas, Michelle 
Thompson, Mathew 
Tierney, Christie 
Tierney, Jane 
Tomlinson, Emily 
Treadwell, Anne 
Tully, Illana 
Turnbull, Annelies 
Unsworth, Lisa 
Urban, Alice 
Walmsley, Helen 
Walter, Andrew 
Walter, Lucy 
Ward, Tristan 
Waters, Donna 
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Welsh, Callum 
Welsh, Lucy 
Welsh, Sophie 
Wenn, Laura 
Wheatley, Megan 
Wheelahan, Justin 
Whitear, Sophie 
Whitear, Tristan 
Williams, Janet 
Williams, Jessica 
Williams, Kate 
Williams, Sandra 
Williams, Simon 
Wilson, Andrew 
Wilson, Elina 
Wilson, James 
Wisken, James 
Wisken, Natalie 
Wolfe, Bryce 
Wolfe, Leanne 
Woodruff, Angela 
Woods, Lou 
Woodward, Corinne 
Wotton, Amy 
Wren, Edwina 
Zabojec, Robert 
Zheng, Chen 
Junior Activity Member 
(5-13 years) 
Ackland, George 
Adnams, Zara 
Agosta, Lucy 
Agosta, Thomas 
Ahern, Violet 
Ahern, Willow 
Ait Ouakrim, Daniel 
Ait Ouakrim, Ines 
Akkerman, Abby 
Akkerman, Samuel 
Alekna, Max 
Alexander, Billie 
Alexander, Charlie 
Anderson, Halle 
Anderson, Ossi 
Angelo, Chloe 
Atkins, Annabel 

Bardwell, Sebastian 
Batty, Ruben 
Batty, Sebastian 
Belcher, Sophie 
Benson, Patrick 
Bertalli, Scarlett 
Biggs, Mila 
Biggs, Sullivan 
Blythe, Max 
Blythe, Oscar 
Bock, Max 
Boyd-Bell, Angus 
Brancatisano, Sibella 
Briganti, Leo 
Briganti, Oriana 
Briganti, Siena 
Brown, Edward 
Brown, Lucy 
Brown, Max 
Bryant, Harry 
Bryant, Ned 
Butler, Harry 
Butler, Winter 
Cameron, Milly 
Carne, Mia 
Chadwick, Kobi 
Chandrajit, Anaya 
Chandrajit, Kiaan 
Cherny, Chloe 
Cherny, Phoebe 
Clancy, Greta 
Clark, Milla 
Cleven, Lainey 
Cleven, Matilda 
Cleven, Tabitha 
Collings, Fraser 
Collins, Alfred 
Collins, Benjamin 
Collins, Daniel 
Collins, Zachary 
Connell, Aristotle 
Connell, Joseph 
Connell, Vincent 
Cooper, George 
Cooper, Henry 
Cooper, Humphrey 

Cooper, Ned 
Cooper, Oscar 
Cooper, Polly 
Corriero, Tinashe 
Costuna, Quentin 
Couston, Chloe 
Couston, Lucy 
Crescia, Amelie 
Crisp, Emily 
Crone, Lachlan 
Crowe, Clementine 
Crowe, Jasper 
Crowe, Jemima 
Cummins, Alice 
Curry, James 
D'Angelo, Poppy 
Date, Isabella 
Date, Teddy 
Davison, Ted 
Davison, Tessa 
Dawes, Hugh 
Day, Matilda 
De Fazio, Charlie 
De Fazio, Harry 
De Fazio, Jack 
Del Vecchio, Ruben 
Demkiw-O'Brien, Gus 
Dennis, Agnes 
Devine, Leah 
Devine, Ruby 
Doquile, Alice 
Douglas, Ruby 
Dowling, Finn 
Dowling, Reid 
D'Souza, Carl 
Dubois, Anouk 
Dubois, Heide 
Dunstan, Finn 
Dunstan, Hugo 
Dunstan, Louis 
Dyer, Lily 
Dyer, Olive 
Eagle, Charlie 
Eagle, Harrison 
Elliott, Ava 
Embrey, Charlie 

Enever, Bonnie 
Enever, Tess 
Farrell, Fred 
Feehan, Isaac 
Fehring, Annabelle 
Fehring, Samuel 
Fehring, Thomas 
Findlay, Thomas 
Foenander, Scout 
Foenander, Willow 
Foley, Mietta 
Franes, Eva 
Franes, Maya 
Fulton, Esther 
Gallace, Isabella 
Gamlen, Charlotte 
Gamlen, Maximilian 
Gasparini, Annelise 
Gasparini, Josh 
Gasparini, Lulu 
Gatta-Castel, Remi 
Gooding, Angus 
Gooding, Flynn 
Grant, Claudia 
Gray, Georgina 
Gray, Philippa 
Gregory, Campbell 
Gregory, Spencer 
Griffith, Oscar 
Griffiths, Iggy 
Guy, Lachlan 
Guymer, Millicent 
Gyles, Elliot 
Hampshire, Lilian 
Hansen, Baas 
Hansen, Orla 
Hansen, Sonni 
Hansen, Toby 
Hansen, William 
Harriet, Swan 
Harrison, Evie 
Harrison, Sam 
Haslock, Edward 
Heffernan, Lachlan 
Henderson, Grace 
Henderson, Lucy 
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Heppell, Gordon 
Hershan, Eliza 
Hewitt, Phoebe 
Higgins, Liam 
Higgins, Matilde 
Hodges, Charlie 
Hodges, Francis 
Hodges, Olivia 
Hodges, Theodore 
Hogg, Bailee 
Hogg, Jhai 
Holland, Macy 
Holt, Alexander 
Holt, Freddie 
Hopkinson, Maximilian 
Horne, Daniel 
Horne, Edmund 
Hourihan, Maggie 
Hunt, Clara 
Hunt, Claudia 
Hunt, Frederick 
Hunt, Grace 
Hunt, Hugh 
Hunt, Maisie 
Hunt, Theodore 
Hunt, Thomas 
Hutton, Jock 
Hutton, Stella 
Hyams, Amelia 
Hyams, Edison 
Hyams, Oliver 
Hynes, India 
Hynes, Lottie 
Hyslop, Alfie 
Hyslop, Henry 
Hyslop, Sam 
Jeanes, Catherine 
Johnson, Bryce 
Johnson, Darcie 
Johnson, Kitty 
Johnston, Ariya 
Johnston, Gerard 
Johnstone, Mimi 
Josephine, Swan 
Kemp Smith, Anoushka 
Kendrick, Bailey 

King, Oscar 
King, Sophie 
Kitto, Arnold 
Kitto, Lewis 
Kleverlaan, Jack 
Kleverlaan, Molly 
Kloe, Gabrielle 
Kloe, William 
Knights, Grace 
Kogler, Claudia 
Kogler, Tom 
Kyriacou, Elina 
Kyriacou, Thomas 
Laing, Iris 
Laing, Rudy 
Laity, Oscar 
Lally, Max 
Landau, Ari 
Landau, Asher 
Landau, Ezra 
Landau, Reuben 
Landau, Zac 
Langford, Jasper 
Laughton, Cleo 
Lawry, Annabelle 
Lebeau, Estelle 
Lebeau, Gaston 
Lee, Charlotte 
Lee, Edward 
Lee, Matilda 
Lee, Miles 
Levy, Chloe 
Levy, Toby 
Lloyd, Henry 
Lloyd, Sam 
Lundine, Darwyn 
Lundine, Morgan 
Macaulay, William 
Mackie, Nina-Rose 
Mackinnon, Claude 
Mackinnon, Harry 
Macnaughton, Henry 
Madder, Eve 
Mallet, Amelie 
Mallet, Camille 
Mangini, Hayden 

Mangini, Isla 
Mannock, Charlotte 
Mannock, Cleopatra 
Mannock, Isabel 
Margis, Anikin 
Marks, Thomas 
Martyn, Matthew 
Mather, Callum 
Mather, Mitchy 
Mathieson, Mia 
Mcallister, Hamish 
McCraith, Alice 
Mcgirr, Lucy 
Mcgirr, Thomas 
McGuire, Rose 
McGuirk, Mitchell 
Mclachlan, Indi 
Mclachlan, Lex 
Mclachlan, Milla 
Mclaurin, James 
Mcmanamey, Lachie 
McManamey, Sophie 
Mcmicking, Jonty 
Mcpherson, Isaac 
McPherson, Maddison 
Mellor, Freya 
Merrigan, Violet 
Merrison, Frederick 
Merrison, Phoebe 
Merrison, William 
Merry, Charlotte 
Merry, Georgia 
Meszaros, Madeline 
Miglic, Ada 
Miglic, Zoe 
Milesi, Rose 
Miratana, Beau 
Miratana, Lenny 
Mitchell, Angus 
Mitchell, Betsy 
Mitchell, Heidi 
Mitchell, Rupert 
Morley, Felix 
Morley, Madeleine 
Morton, Estelle 
Mullan, Oliver 

Munro, Charlie 
Munro, Harry 
Murphy, Nellie 
Murray, Phoebe 
Myers, Harry 
Myers, Jackson 
Myers, Mason 
Neal, Isabella 
Nienaber, Sylvie 
Nixon, Ciara 
Norris, Max 
Northcote, Jasmine 
Norton, Thomas 
Noxon, Poppy 
Nussbaum, Solomon 
O'Brien, Billy 
O'Brien, Charlie 
O'Brien, Jack 
O'Connor, Alannah 
O'Connor, Fergus 
O'Connor, Liam 
Oldham, Charlotte 
Oldham, Grace 
Oliver, Edward 
Parker, Lucy 
Parker, Poppy 
Parris, Eden 
Parris, Leo 
Pascoe, Isla 
Pateraon, Alice 
Paterson, Isabella 
Patti, Allegra 
Patti, Evanna 
Paul, Harry 
Paul, Poppy 
Paynter, Amelia 
Perman-Swenson, 
Zander 
Perry, Camilla 
Phillips, Arki 
Phillips, Elsie 
Phillips, Jonah 
Phillips, Luca 
PITT, Alexandra 
Pitt, Edward 
Poore, Chloe 
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Pound, Charlotte 
Pratt, Poppy 
Pritchard, Hayley 
Pullar, Charlie 
Pullar, Mimi 
Rae, Imogen 
Ralton, Hazel 
Ralton, Ike 
Randles, Ivy 
Randles, Oliver 
Redlich, Alexander 
Redward, Jack 
Redward, Matilda 
Reid, Zara 
Reith, Finn 
Reith, Henry 
Renato, Evie 
Renato, Henry 
Renato, Matilda 
Riggall, Camilla 
Riggall, Harry 
Rizzon, Maxwell 
Rogers, Ava 
Rogers, Eli 
Rogers, Jacob 
Rogers, Maia 
Rose, Alice 
Ross, Isobel 
Ross, Lachlan 
Rossborough, Isla 
Sahely, Charlie 
Salaoutis, Stephanie 
Salaoutis, Zoe 
Sandow, Billy 
Sandow, Fredric 
Sandow, Jessica 
Sauboua Pivan, Theo 
Scher, Alexia 

Scher, Jack 
Scher, Joah 
Scoffern, Misty 
Scott, Charlotte 
Scott, Genevieve 
Scott, Hamish 
Singh, Daniel 
Singh Towler, Jaya 
Singh Towler, Rohan 
Sironic, Camille 
Skehan, Milla 
Skehan, Oscar 
Snow, Bonnie 
Snow, Claudia 
Snow, Harriet 
Snow, Hunter 
Snow, Isla 
Snow, Judah 
Sobczyszyn, 
Evangeline 
Somogyi, Luke 
Somogyi, Zack 
Spedding, Grace 
Spedding, Harrison 
Spokevicius, Ahna 
Spokevicius, Klara 
Spokevicius, Tamas 
Steven, Anna 
Stewart, Connor 
Stewart, Eliza 
Strauss, Charlotte 
Strauss, Cleo 
Strauss, Nate 
Sullivan, Kesia 
Sullivan, Priya 
Summers, Lucy 
Summers, Maxwell 
Sverdvik, Dulcie 
Sverdvik, Fox 

Sverdvik, Velvet 
Swanson Lau, Jun 
Swanson Lau, Kit 
Talbot, Dylan 
Talbot, Harriet 
Talbot, Spencer 
Taylor, Bonnie 
Thompson, Sabine 
Thompson, Sylvie 
Tierney, Asher 
Tierney, Eva 
Tierney, Isla 
Tomlinson, Arabella 
Tomlinson, Freddie 
Tomlinson, Tobias 
Tully, Ethan 
Tyrrell, Jarvis 
Tyrrell, Oliver 
Van Delft, Callum 
Van Delft, Petra 
Wallace, Daniel 
Walter, Abby 
Walter, Jock 
Ward, Cielo 
Waters, Poppy 
Waters, Wilbur 
Watt, Archie 
Wenn, Chloe 
Wenn, Harvey 
Westaway, Archie 
Wheatley-Young, Ilka 
Wheatley-Young, 
Owen 
Wheelahan, Claire 
Whitear, Fleur 
Whitear, Patrick 
Wilkinson, Sophie 
Williams, Jack 
Williams, Lucy 

Williams, Percival 
Williams Slattery, 
Clementine 
Wilson, Grace 
Wilson, Joseph 
Wilson, Lumi 
Wilson, Topi 
Wisken, Kalani 
Wisken, Mahlia 
Wisken, Pia 
Wodak, Hazel 
Wodak, Zadie 
Wolfe, Isabella 
Woodruff, Elizabeth 
Zabojec, Alexander 
Zabojec, Lucas 
General 
Atkins, Charlie 
Bonfield, Rafferty 
Bonfield, Sadie 
Chadwick, Jaime 
Chatfield, Lila 
Farrell, Chloe 
Finley, Daisy 
Griffith, Angus 
Hunter, Grace 
Jeanes, Madeleine 
Lally, Sam 
Majcher, Florence 
Mallet, Harry 
Mallet, Jack 
McCraith, Philippa 
Meredith-Smith, Eliza 
Rhodes, Isobel 
Rhodes, Luca 
Rhodes, Oliver 
Wolfe, Montgomery 
Probationary 
Coate, Mitch 
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Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 April 2023

Note 2023 2022
$ $

Revenue
Income 330,711             275,608          
Donations 52,576                29,163            
Income from Government including Grants 466,733             65,535            
Interest income 10,193                10,356            
Other income - 315 

Total revenue 860,213             380,976          

Expenses
Depreciation expense 62,632                65,615            
Grants and Donations 13,650                7,200              
Other Expenses 274,157             221,071          

Total expenditure 350,438             293,886          

Surplus before income tax 509,775             87,090            

Income tax expense - - 

Surplus for the year attributable to the members of 
Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. 509,775             87,090            

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax. - - 

Total comprehensive Income for the financial year 
attributable to the members of Point Leo Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc.

509,775             87,090            



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 April 2023

Note 2023 2022
$ $

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,169,234 1,318,415
Trade and other receivables 160 2,200
Inventories 47,681 40,816
Other assets 13,028 19,586
Total current assets 1,230,103 1,381,017

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,398,477 964,885
Work in Progress - 72,431
Right of Use Asset 400 400
Total non-current assets 1,398,877 1,037,716

Total assets 2,628,980 2,418,733

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Other liabilities (464) (1,036) 
Total current liabilities (464) (1,036) 

Non current liabilities
Deferred income - 300,000 
Lease liabilities 400 400               
Total non-current liabilities 400 300,400        

Total liabilities (64) 299,364 

Net assets 2,629,044 2,119,369

Members’ Funds
Members funds 563,778 563,778
Retained earnings 2,056,941 1,547,166
Unrealised gains 8,324 8,424

Total members’ funds 2,629,044 2,119,369



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Statement of Members’ Funds 
For the year ended 30 April 2023

30 April 2023 Members Retained Unrealised Total
 funds Earnings gains

$ $ $ $

Balance at 1 May 2022 563,778 1,547,166 8,424 2,119,369
Profit for the year - 509,775 - 509,775
Unrealised gains / (losses) - - (100) (100)

Balance at 30 April 2023 563,778 2,056,941 8,324 2,629,044

30 April 2022 Members Retained Unrealised Total
 funds Earnings gains

$ $ $ $

Balance at 1 May 2021 563,778 1,460,077 5,728 2,029,583
Profit for the year - 87,090 - 87,090
Unrealised gains -  - 2,696 2,696

Balance at 30 April 2022 563,778 1,547,166 8,424 2,119,369



Note 2023 2022
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from donors, members and other income 427,508       334,731       
Payments to suppliers and employees (598,777)      (146,254)      
Interest received 10,193         10,356         
Grants received 513,407       72,089         
Net cash provided by operating activities 5 352,330       270,922       

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 3,652           18,000         
Payments for property, plant and equipment (505,164)      (43,767)        
Net cash used in investing activities (501,512)      (25,767)        

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (149,182) 245,155

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial 
year 1,318,415    1,073,260    

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial 
year 1,169,233    1,318,415    

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 April 2023



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 April 2023

Note 1.  Statement of significant accounting policies

New and amended standards adopted by the Association

Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted.

Basis of preparation

All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise stated.

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. is an entirely voluntary organisation which provides beach patrol and rescue services, first aid 
and lifesaving training at Point Leo Surf Beach and surrounds. 

The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2023 were approved and authorised for issue by the Members of the
Committee of Management.  

These special purpose financial statements comply with all the recognition and measurement requirements in Australian 
Accounting Standards

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

Basis of preparation
Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. is a not-for-profit entity. In the opinion of the Committee, Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc Inc 
is not a reporting entity as its users may request the financial information they need. These special purpose financial statements 
have been prepared for distribution to members and for the purposes of fulfilling the reporting requirements under the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Association has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs and does not take into account
changing money value or, except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current assets.

In the application of the Association’s accounting policies, the members of the committee are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 April 2023

(a) Property, Plant and equipment

(b) Inventories

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

(d) Income tax

(e) Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables

(f) Right of Use Asset

(g) Revenue and other income

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

(h) Goods and services Tax (GST)

Property (buildings), plant and equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation. The
depreciable amount of all property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the useful life of the asset to the Association
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.

Inventories are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments.

No provision for income tax has been made as the Association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax
Assessment Act 1997.

Accounts receivable are expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current
assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets. 

A right-of-use asset is recognised in relation to the concessionary lease of the land upon which the Association's Club House 
operates.  The right-of-use asset is measured at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining unexpired period 
of the lease or the useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST
receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.

Funding for Club activities comes from membership fees, donations and gifts/sponsorships from corporate benefactors. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable after taking into account any available concessions.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method using an appropriate interest rate.  

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial report. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Grant income
Grant revenue is recognised in profit or loss when the company satisfies the performance obligations stated within the funding
agreements. If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before the company is eligible to retain the contribution,
the grant will be recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability until those conditions are satisfied.

Capital grants
Grant income received relating to the purchase of capital items is shown as unamortised capital grant and brought to account over 
the expected life of the asset in proportion to the related depreciation charge.

Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and
financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 April 2023

(i) Accounts Payable and Other Payables

(j)   Provisions

(k) Impairment of assets

(l) Current and non-current classification

An asset is classified as current when: 

·      it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
·      it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when: 
·      it is either expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 
·      it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
·      it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

(m) Comparative information

(n) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

When required by Accounting Standards, comparatives have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current
year.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the committee of management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other various factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.  

The Committee of management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services
received by the Association during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the
amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Association reviews the carrying values of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's
carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Provisions are recognised when the Association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

·     the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. 

·      there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 

Assets and liabilities are presented in the Statement of Financial Position based on current and non-current classification.

·      it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 



Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 30 April 2023

NOTE 2 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION 

During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of 
the Association: 2023 2022

$ $
Audit services - Kidmans Partners Audit Pty Ltd 
Audit of the financial statements 3,800 3,500

NOTE 3 - EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have not been any material events between the reporting date and the date of signing of the 
financial statements by the Committee of Management.  

No other matters or circumstances have occurred subsequent to year end that has significantly affect the 
operations of the Association.

NOTE 4 - REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Association's registered office and principal place of business is Foreshore 55 Western Parade, 
Point Leo VIC 3916.

NOTE 5 - CASH FLOW RECONCILIATION
2023 2022

Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities with net current year surplus
$ $

Current year surplus/(deficit) after income tax 509,775 87,090

Non-cash flows in current year surplus:
Depreciation expense 62,632 65,615
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of assets 3,872 (119)
Asset write-offs 1,416 1,046
Movement in unrealised gain reserve (100) 2,696
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable and other debtors 2,040 (677)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (6,865) 9,206
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 6,558 (11,956)
(Increase)/decrease in work in progress 72,431 (32,809)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and other liabilities (299,428) 150,830

352,330 270,922





Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 
2001 to the Committee of Governance of Point Leo Surf Live Saving Club Inc.  

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 
April 2023 there have been: 

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

KIDMANS PARTNERS AUDIT PTY LTD 

John Petridis 
Director 

Melbourne,���-XO\����3  



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE 
SAVING CLUB INC.  

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. (the Association), which 
comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2023, the Statement of Profit or Loss and 
other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Members Funds, Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to 
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and Statement by the 
Members of the Committee of Management.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Association as at 30 April 2023 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASB’s) to the extent described in 
Note 1, the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the financial reporting requirements of the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012. 

Emphasis of Matter  
Without qualification to the opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the following matter: 

1. As is common for Associations of this type, it is not practical for the Association to maintain an effective
system of internal control over cash transactions, until their entry into the accounting records.
Accordingly, our audit in relation to these activities was limited to the amount recorded.

Basis of Accounting 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis 
of accounting.  The financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Members of the 
Committee of Managements’ financial reporting responsibilities under the Associations Incorporation 
Reform Act 2012 and the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012.  As a result, the 
financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.   

Basis for opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report.  

We are independent of the Association in accordance with the independence requirements of Australian 
professional accounting bodies, of the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 and the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012.  We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information.  Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE 
SAVING CLUB INC. (CONTINUED) 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and in doing so consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard.  

Going concern 
Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting appears to be appropriate and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, there is no material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Association or cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  Those charged with governance are responsible for 
overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud and error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.   

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement 
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  We also: 

x Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

x Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

x Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

x Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE 
SAVING CLUB INC. (CONTINUED) 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

x Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Kidmans Partners Audit Pty Ltd 
ABN: 46 143 986 841 

John Petridis 
Director  
4 July 2023  
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COMPILATION REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF POINT LEO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC.  

We have compiled the accompanying additional information of Pont Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. for the year ended 30 April 
2023.  The additional information has been prepared to satisfy the information needs of the committee of Point Leo Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc. in accordance with the accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the annual financial statements of Point 
Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. for the year ended 30 April 202ϯ, as described in Note 1 to the financial statements.   

The Responsibility of the Committee  

The committee of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. are solely responsible for the form and content of the additional information, 
the  reliability,  accuracy  and  completeness  of  the  information  used  to  compile  it  and  for  the  determination  that  the  basis  of  
accounting  used  for  its  preparation  is  appropriate  to  meet  their  needs  and  appropriate  for  the  purpose  that  the  additional 
information was prepared.  

Our Responsibility  

On  the  basis  of  information  provided  to  us  by  management  we  have  compiled  the  accompanying  additional  information  in  
accordance with the basis of accounting described above and APES 315 Compilation of Financial Information.  

We  have  applied  our  professional  expertise  in  accounting  and  financial  reporting  to  compile  the  additional  information  in  
accordance with the basis of accounting described above. We have complied with the relevant ethical requirements of APES 110 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.  

Disclaimer  

Since our engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required to verify the reliability, accuracy or completeness of 
the  information  provided  to  us  by  management  to  compile  the  additional  information  or  the  appropriateness  of  the  basis  of  
accounting  used  for  its  preparation.  Accordingly,  we  do  not  express  an  audit  opinion  or  a  review  conclusion  on  the  additional 
information.  

The additional information was compiled exclusively for the benefit of the management and the committee of Point Leo Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc. The additional information may not be suitable for other purposes.  We do not accept responsibility for the contents 
of the additional information.  

Kidmans Partners Pty Ltd  

ABN: 46 143 987 222 

Nathan Stiglich 

Principal 

4 July 2023 



2023 2022
$ $

Income
Gifts
Sponsorships 2,727           5,156         
Gifts & donations 52,576         29,163       
Grants 466,733       65,535       
Subsidies 449 - 

Facilities
Equipment 2,273           4,883         
Club Rooms 2,841           2,314         

Fund Raising
Pt Leo Swim Classic 24,850         19,531       
Functions 12,787         9,218         
Sundry 10,621         7,480         

Memberships
Competition 31,748         24,311       
Members 100,582       90,664       
Training camps 27,165         20,607       
50/50 scheme - - 
Other income 13,184         6,863         
Bar 7,235           1,443         
Interest 10,193         10,356       
Uniforms; clothing 76,115         66,282       
Equipment Levy - Nippers 17,454         16,854       
Other - 196            
Profit/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets - 119            
Insurance Claim Recovery 682              - 
Total income 860,213       380,976     

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
Detailed Profit and Loss Statement
For the year ended 30 April 2023



2023 2022
$ $

Expenses
Accommodation 517              -            
Accountant/Audit 3,800           3,000         
Administration 4,307           7,493         
Awards 5,688           1,534         
Bank Charges 2,576           2,514         
Bar Purchases 4,110           1,671         
Cleaning 6,855           7,775         
Club Repairs & Maintenance 10,218         13,708       
Club Supplies & furnishings 9,237           - 
Competition

         
4�,��� 23,142       

Covid - - 
Depreciation 62,632         65,615       
Equipment Hire & Replacement 98 1,674         
50/50 Equipment payments - 1,798         
Asset Written-Off 1,416           1,046         
First Aid 75 735            
Functions 15,772         12,658       
GTF Grant 13,650         7,200         
Information & Technology 5,608           3,891         
Insurance 29,613         22,020       
Profit/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets 3,872           -            
Patrol �,��� 1,816         
Postage & Delivery 1,866           1,333         
Printing & Reproduction 516 401            
Registration & Licences 1,735           1,897         
Sundry 16,045         18,210       
Swim Classic 17,955         13,854       
Training & Development 19,486         21,440       
Uniforms 54,451         53,169       
Utilities 6,114           4,291         
Total expenses 350,438       293,886     

Surplus 509,775       87,090       

Detailed Profit and Loss Statement (Continued)
For the year ended 30 April 2023

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 
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